

# **Guide of Good Practice**









### D7.2 "Guide of Good Practice"

#### Published by Ellinogermaniki Agogi

**Editor:** Ellinogermaniki Agogi Katerina Riviou

#### Authors-Contributors:

ELLINOGERMANIKI AGOGI	CTI
Katerina Riviou	Giorgos Asimakopoulos
BMBF	UB
Marion Obermüller, Monika Moises	Silvia Alcaraz-Domínguez, Mario Barajas
NHL University of Applied Sciences	ADPIOS
Wouter Vollenbroek, Sjoerd de Vries,	Serge Ravet
Nico van Loo	
ULS	
Alan Bruce	

#### Artwork: Michalis Antonopoulos

Published by Ellinogermaniki Agogi

The TRANSIt project is carried out within the framework of the LLP-COMENIUS programme and is cofinanced by the European Commission. This document reflects the views only of the authors, and the Commission cannot be held responsible for any use which may be made of the information contained therein.



Project number: N°. 528005-LLP-1-2012-1-GR-COMENIUS-CMP - TRANSIt Copyright © 2014 by Ellinogermaniki Agogi All rights reserved.

Reproduction or translation of any part of this work without the written permission of the copyright owners is unlawful. Request for permission or further information should be addressed to Ellinogermaniki Agogi, Athens, Greece. Printed by EPINOIA S.A.

**ISBN Number:** 978-960-473-596-9

### Table of Contents

1.	Introduction	5
1.1	Scope of the document	5
1.2	Structure	5
2.	Initial Concepts	7
2.1	TRANSversal key competences for lifelong learning	7
2.2	Teachers Needs	8
2.1.1.	User Needs Analysis Goals and Methodology	8
2.1.2.	Findings from the needs analysis	9
2.3	State of the Art	11
2.4	The TRANSIt Project	12
2.5	How TRANSIt corresponds to Teachers Needs	12
3.	The TRANSIt approach	15
3.1	The TRANSIt Competency Framework for Teachers	15
3.2	The TRANSIt Training Process	16
3.2.1	TRANSIt learning outcomes	18
3.2.2	Cross-referencing TRANSIt Learning Outcomes and TRANSIt Competency Framework	18
3.3	Training Methodology	19
3.4	Cycles of implementation-Timetable	20
3.5	The Design of the Training Curriculum (face to face workshops)	20
3.6	The TRANSIt Training Modules	21
3.6.1	Module 1. Design Learning / Learning Design	21
3.6.2	Module 2. Prepare Learning	29
3.6.3	Module 3. Run Learning	34
3.6.4	Module 4. Review Learning	38
4	The TRANSIt implementation (technical tools)	41
4.1	TRANSIt teacher training platform & ePortfolio tool	41
4.2	Learning Design Use Cases: Design & Share your educational resources regarding	49
	competence development with use of the ODS Authoring Tool	
4.3	Learning Design Use Cases: Demonstration of designing a CBL Lesson Plan/Learning	60
	Scenario with use of the Octopus Authoring Tool	
5	Exemplary Practice	85
5.1	Framework	85
5.2	Phases of Implementation Activities	85
5.3	Implementation Examples	86

3

6	The TRANSIt Validation and Evaluation	99
6.1	Evaluation tools	99
6.1.1	Quantitative tools	99
6.1.2	Qualitative tools	101
6.2	Results	101
6.2.1	Effectiveness on teacher competencies	101
6.2.2	Usefulness of the training	105
6.3	Quantitative Indicators (analytics data, web analysis)	110
6.4	Conclusions	121
7	Future Direction/Implementation	123
7.1	Affiliations	123
7.2	Networking and clustering activities	123
7.2.1	Connection with other projects, repositories, networks	123
7.3	Selected Dissemination Channels	125
7.4	Future steps	127
8	References	129
9	Appendix A: Use Cases/User generated CBL resources	131
10	Appendix B: Evaluation tools deployed	135

### Introduction

The TRANSIt Guide of Good Practice sets out the necessary guidelines and recommendations for the development of teacher training programmes on key competence acquisition of teachers and students. The guide describes the developed pedagogical approach, the web based platforms used to deliver educational programs, recommended educational practice and possible future directions for this TRANSIt approach. A primary aim underpinning the development of this guide is that it is informative, systematic, practically useful and directly applicable for school teachers and school ICT staff.

#### 1.1 Scope of the document

The TRANSIt Guide of Good Practice briefly presents the project, its implementation, and its main outcomes, as well as discusses benefits and recommendations for the further application, improvement and integration of the project results in training policies and practices. Its aim is to be a full, systematic, practically useful and directly applicable guide for school teachers who are willing to follow the proposed training programme. Its compilation will be the result of the collaborative effort of teachers, pedagogical experts and trainers. It is anticipated that having such a resource will encourage and motivate school personnel to persist with training programs and further integrate technology into their teaching practice.

#### 1.2 Structure

**Chapter 1:** Gives an overview of this document, providing its scope, and its structure.

**Chapter 2:** presents shortly the initial concepts and state of the art review in the theme of competence based learning, the teachers needs analysis performed in TRANSIt, the aims of the TRANSIt project, as well as the ways that the project will try to meet the documented teachers' needs.

**Chapter 3:** describes the TRANSIt Competency Framework for Teachers designed based on literature review of existing standards. Moreover, the TRANSIt Training Process and the TRANSIt training modules are presented. For each Module there is a description of the aims and objectives followed by the sub-module titles contained in it. Competency criteria are specified and associated with the sub-module to help the teacher to target a specific competency stage.

**Chapter 4:** In this chapter the TRANSIt teacher training platform & ePortfolio tool are presented, with instructions for use, as well as two cases for creating and sharing your competence based learning educational resources with use of the Authoring Tools. Moreover the links to the TRANSIt multilingual communities on ODS Portal and the dedicated workspace on Octopus are presented, so that users can search the available CBL resources created by participants in TRANSIt implementation activities or create their own.

**Chapter 5:** presents indicative implementation activities in partner countries that could act as example for further implementation and trainings on competence based learning (CBL).

**Chapter 6:** presents the validation and evaluation framework, tools deployed, results as well as the conclusions reached regarding project outcomes.

**Chapter 7:** presents the affiliation, selected dissemination channels, as well as future steps.

**Appendix A:** presents indicative user-generated content that can serve as use cases for interested education stakeholders around the theme of competence based learning.

Appendix B: presents indicative evaluation tools deployed.

# 2

### **Initial Concepts**

In the context of the Agenda for New Skills and Jobs (European Commission, 2010), recent forecasts of future skills' needs anticipate an increase in jobs requiring high- or medium-level gualifications. However, such qualifications need to be accompanied by key competences that equip young people to work in intercultural, multilingual and rapidly changing circumstances and to contribute to creativity and innovation. The concept of key competences originated with the adoption of the Lisbon Strategy in 2000 and it resulted in the European Reference Framework (2006). Key competences in the EU framework are those that 'all individuals need for personal fulfilment and development, active citizenship, social inclusion and employment'. The development of key competences should include both subject-based and transversal competences that will motivate and equip students for further learning. The key competence acquisition (KCA) by every young person is one of the long term objectives of the updated strategic framework for European cooperation (ET2020, 2009). Most of the EU Member States are formulating and at least beginning to implement policies that move their school systems from being predominantly input led and subject-oriented towards curricula which include competences, cross-curricular activities, active and individual learning, as well as a focus on learning outcomes. Yet, these developments do not necessarily result in significant, widespread changes in practice – that is, in how schools actually organise and provide learning experiences for pupils.

## 2.1 TRANSversal key competences for lifelong learning

The transversal key competencies are a subset of the eight key competences identified in the European Reference Framework (2006). The competences are:

- 1. Communication in the mother tongue;
- 2. Communication in foreign languages;
- 3. Mathematical competence and basic competences in science and technology;
- 4. Digital competence;
- 5. Learning to learn;
- 6. Social and civic competences;
- 7. Sense of initiative and entrepreneurship;
- 8. Cultural awareness and expression

The key competences are all considered equally important, because each can contribute to a successful life in a knowledge society. Many of the competences overlap and interlock: aspects essential to one domain will support competence in another. Competence in the fundamental basic skills of language, literacy, numeracy and in information and communication technologies (ICT) is an essential foundation for learning, and learning to learn supports all learning activities. There are a number of themes applied throughout the Reference Framework: critical thinking, creativity, initiative, problem-solving, risk assessment, decision-taking, and constructive management of feelings, play a role in all eight key competences (European Commission, 2008).

#### 2.2 Teachers Needs

As mentioned before the policy developments do not necessarily result in significant, widespread changes in daily teaching practice. The difficulty is in all cases translating these policies into practice. The challenge of supporting such initiatives, harnessing that innovation and bridging the gap between policy and practice on a wide scale is an issue. One of the core problems for the effective implementation of the above policies is the lack of initial education and training, as well as systematic support of teachers that could equip them with the skills and competences necessary to deliver KCA effectively. In fact the situation is even worse for teachers at secondary education since their training has not prepared them for the most part for holistic methods and cross-curricular teaching, although primary teachers may have more expertise in multidisciplinary approaches (Cluster Key Competences-Curriculum Reform Peer Learning Activity "Fostering Cross-curricular Key Competences for Creativity and Innovation, 2008). Moreover, we have to keep in mind that teachers need support in their everyday practice (training, institutional support, specific examples/good practice) and that they probably face difficulties in translating the policy into practice, especially when they don't have the proper underpinnings. New policies and practices must be therefore researched, developed and implemented to meet changing EU needs.

#### 2.1.1. User Needs Analysis Goals and Methodology

The goal of the needs analysis was to identify user training needs in terms of educational theories, models and frameworks, ICT tools and other learning design processes that may prove useful to teachers. To identify the training needs of the teaching staff in Europe, we used a mixed study design, based on four different techniques. All countries requested target users to fill in a questionnaire. Results of the questionnaire were interpreted quantitatively through software and qualitatively by means of a SWOT analysis. Following the SWOT analysis derived from questionnaire survey and workshop discussions is presented. A systematic analysis of the results from the questionnaire survey and workshops resulted in the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats. The main Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threats (SWOT) of training workshops are depicted.

As a general conclusion, educational staff is willing to undertake a CBL initiative and will be capable of this if they are properly informed and educated, but limited experience in CBL along with existing educational system constraints (such as limited resources and centralized traditional approaches) jeopardize this perspective.

	Helpful to achieving the objectives	Harmful to achieving the objectives
Į	Respondents are positive about teaching in a competence based way Respondents are willing to participate in workshops Respondents are willing to learn more about teaching and assessment teachingues Respondents are willing to implement new (ICT) technologies into the competence-based teaching methods.	Respondents have low experience in the con- components of CBL Respondents have low experience with teaching with a major focus on competencies. Respondents have low experience with the new teaching and ussessing teaching or to-Portfolios, LMS, etc.)
	Respondents should be trained in being a compenence based learning teacher Respondents should know more about the possibilities of teaching based on competences Respondents should know more about 'how to' assess competences.	Vian size Time pressure Some constraints of educational year of thinking in the correct simulation

#### 2.1.2. Findings from the needs analysis

The D2.1 Needs Analysis Report highlights the training needs of the project's target groups. The Analysis of User Needs Report shows that teachers are generally open and positive towards enhancing the competencies of their students. They are interested in courses and workshops that can help them expand their knowledge about how to teach key competencies and how to assess the possible acquired competencies. The majority of participants never or almost never used rubrics, peer assessment, role play, e-Portfolios and simulation as tools to measure the knowledge and skills of the students. The paper and pencil tests and the computer assignments are still the most commonly used assessment methodologies. Other needs identified include practical assignments to good practices to self-assessment and interaction with peer teachers and social networking opportunities.

The majority of the respondents mentioned practical assignments, demonstrations of tolls and instruments and examples of good practices as the activities/methods that are most needed. Just a small part of the respondents points one-to-one discussions as an important need for the training workshops. The respondents expect that they can achieve objectives such as increasing opportunities for professional development, introducing real-life assignments and more attracting teaching approaches in the class room and to enhance students' learning opportunities. The general picture that emerges is that the respondents expect a lot of the workshops, but that the most important need is to learn more about the way they can teach and assess the key competencies.

Many of the needs are common to all countries, but indeed there are some differentiations between the partner countries.

- Only three out of twenty seven identified needs are required by only less than 50% of the participating countries.
- Five out of twenty seven identified needs are required by only the 50% of the participating countries.
- Nineteen put of twenty seven identified needs are required by more than the 50% of participating countries.

Identified needs	GR	NL	IR	SP	FR	AU
Themes applied throughout competences: critical thinking, initiative, problem solving, risk assessment, decision taking, and constructive management of feelings.		4	4	1	4	V
Teaching methods fostering competence based learning (project based, action learning, problem oriented learning, narrative approach)		4	4	4		1
Learning theories on competence based learning and teaching (e.g. constructivism)		1			1	
Societal and anthropological views underlying the concept of competence based learning.			4			
Assessment in relation to specific tools for assessing competences		1	1	1		1
Assessment in relation to approaches and objectives related to competences assessment.		4	4	1	4	V
Need to learn more on school curricula in relation to characteristics of competence based curricula (features of competence	1	V	V	1		

Identified needs	GR	NL	IR	SP	FR	AU
based school and learning environments						
Need for professional development of teachers in relation to the creation of a work and learning environment for teachers to allow them to develop competence based teaching skills	V	V	V	V	V	4
Need for professional development of teachers in relation to the promotion of competence based teaching among teaching staff			4	V	V	
Need for professional development of teachers in relation to acquiring the necessary teaching skills for competence base teaching		4	4	1	V	
Need for professional development of teachers in relation to the required teachers' skills in competence based teaching.	4	1	4		V	4
Need for the following activities in the training workshops: one to one discussions	1		1	V		
Need for the following activities in the training workshops: small group discussions	4		1	V		
Need for the following activities in the training workshops: interactions with peer teachers/social networking opportunities		4	4			4
Need for the following activities in the training workshops: lectures/expert inputs		1	1			
Need for the following activities in the training workshops: assessment by peers/community			4			
Need for the following activities in the training workshops: self-assessment	1	1	1			
Need for the following activities in the training workshops: self-study	1		1			
Need for the following activities in the training workshops: practical assignments		1	1	1		1
Need for the following activities in the training workshops: demonstration of tools and instruments	1	1	V	V		1
Need for the following activities in the training workshops: examples of good practices	V	1	V	V	V	V

#### 2.3 State of the Art

The key findings from the State of the Art Report (TRAN-SIt Deliverable D2.2) include the following:

- Hardware and software availability are slowly but constantly increasing and improving.
- Competency-based learning and teaching are not broadly adopted in the countries that participated in the research. Austria and Spain adopted the competence model, while the Netherlands and Ireland base their educational structure on skills and knowledge, formulated in goals.
- 50% of students almost never use digital resources es and learning materials. Digital resources such as exercise software, online tests and quizzes, datalogging tools, computer simulations, etc. are still

rarely used by students during lessons.

- The use of e-Portfolios is significantly undeveloped. E-Portfolio (electronic portfolio) is a collection of electronic evidence assembled and managed by a user, usually on the web.
- A willingness to adopt a competence-based approach is evident. Assistance to make this a reality will be required.

It will be necessary to take the differences in availability of resources and approaches to teaching and learning in the different countries, into consideration when developing TRANSIt training.

Regarding Competence based education the main findings are the following per country.

Country	State-of-the-Art
Greece	In Greece a legislative change took place in order for a CBL approach to
	be introduced. This introduction is performed by different pilot curricula
	for competence driven education, based on the National Life Long
	Learning Strategies.
Netherlands	A CBL-approach in primary and secondary education in the Netherlands
	is not formally defined. Dutch education is characterized by the focus on
	knowledge and skills, such as math and vocational qualifications.
Ireland	Ireland does not call educational approaches as competence based
	learning, but define skills to be acquired by students. Irish government has
	introduced a key skills framework at secondary level, early childhood and
	is now planning implementation at primary level also.
Spain	Student competences are strongly supported by a law that aims to increase
	the educational system's quality. This law presents the curriculum
	development and assessment of all educational levels and modalities.
France	The France Ministry of Education has defined different key competences
	that should be acquired by the students during their school carrier.
Austria	The Austrian national policy regarding competence based education is
	presented in the 'Buldingsstandard', that deal with certain core
	components. The key competences defined by the European Commission
	were implemented in the Austrian policy.

Regarding Key competences acquisition the main findings are the following per partner country.

Country	State-of-the-Art					
Greece	Greece has no national policy concerning the acquisition of key					
	competences.					
Netherlands	The Netherlands has no national policy concerning the acquisition of key					
	competences. Key competencies are interwoven in the current general					
	education.					
Ireland	Key competences from the European Framework are referred as key skills					
	in Ireland. These key skills are central to teaching and learning across the					
	curriculum at all levels.					
Spain	Basic competences are defined that have strong similarities with those set					
	in the European Reference Framework: linguistic communication,					
	mathematic competence, competence in knowledge and interaction with					
	the physical world, digital and information processing competence, social					
	and citizenship competence, culture and artistic competence, learning to					
	learn, and personal autonomy and initiative.					
France	In France a framework for developing the curriculum for primary and					
	lower secondary education is defined by the Common Core of Knowledge					
	and Skills. The competences they identified are: command of the French					
	language, proficiency in a modern foreign language, the key elements of					
	mathematics, scientific culture and technology, mastery of ordinary					
	information and communication skills, humanist culture, social and civic					
	skills and autonomy and initiative.					
Austria	Austrian students gain, consolidate and continuously develop the eight key					
	competences within an integrated and holistic process.					

#### 2.4 The TRANSIt Project

The aim of the TRANSIt (TRANSversal Key Competences for lifelong learning: Training teachers in competence based education) project is to have a positive impact on the development of students' key competencies through building teachers' capacity on competence oriented education. To achieve this, a pilot teachers' training methodology will be developed on the didactics and e-assessment of key transversal competences. The methods of the project are founded on a holistic view of students learning, personal and social development, going beyond subject boundaries and finding application in a wide spectrum of curriculum subjects. The TRANSIt approach will contribute to the development of creativity, adaptation torapidly changing circumstances, intercultural and multilingual competences, social development, "learning to learn" competence and an improved perception of one's own capacity to solve problems.

The project aims to add its contribution towards improvement of the quality of competence education by addressing:

- 1. Teachers' awareness of key competences;
- Teachers' professional skills regarding the didactics and e-assessment of the key competences with the use of e-Portfolios, supporting them to bring European and national policies into practice;
- Students' acquisition of key competences and underlying skills of critical thinking, problem solving.
- 4. The impact of the training material will be assessed by authentic assessment methods analysing qualitative dimensions, such as the behavioural change of teachers towards the importance of competence acquisition by their students and qualitative and quantitative characteristics of user-generated content uploaded in the e-portfolios and the digital communities created for teachers support.

#### 2.5 How TRANSIt corresponds to Teachers Needs

According to the needs identified, the training framework will include training on the methodological approaches on how teachers can effectively teach while simultaneously enhancing students' competences. The training framework includes references to case studies and examples of good practice collected from previous initiatives and projects on how teachers can design activities that promote the enhancement of competences. Additional modules aiming to operationalize innovative approaches will be developed and tested in the framework of the project. The modular approach of the training methodology will allow (in parallel with the systematic mapping of needs) the localisation of the approach in the implementation countries.

The TRANSIt project will provide a pilot teachers training methodology on the didactics and e-assessment of key transversal competences. In this course we have defined the criteria from which it will be possible for a teacher to know how competent they are in didactics and e-assessment of transversal key competences (using rubrics). The result of the pilot has the potential for adoption by interested stakeholders promoting educational change.

The project methods are founded on a holistic view of students' learning, and their personal and social development. The approach is designed to go beyond subject boundaries and find application in a wide spectrum of curriculum subjects such as social sciences and history, arts and cultural education, languages, and environmental education.

The TRANSIt approach contributes to the development of teachers' ability to enhance students' transversal key competences. Moreover, the proposed approach promotes the Transversal Key Competency Acquisition (TKCA) by all, irrespective of student's personal and social backgrounds. The TRANSIt training programme will focus on the 5 of the Key Competencies known as the Transversal Key Competencies. These are:

- 1. Digital competence
- 2. Learning to learn
- 3. Social and civic competences
- 4. Sense of initiative and entrepreneurship
- 5. Cultural awareness and expression.

The course is inspired by constructivist methodologies. This means teachers taking the course or course modules will be carrying out their teaching duties but also creating and using e-Portfolios as part of their learning process. This feature is uniquely supported by the tools and features of the TRANSIt learning environment. Constructivism views learning as a process in which the learner constructs knowledge based on their past experiences. The teacher only acts as a facilitator who encourages students to explore within a given framework. Learners may collaborate with others to organize their ideas and learn from each other to construct their own knowledge (Brader-Araje & Jones 2002).

In addition, teachers will have access to the Open Discovery Space (ODS) portal to access and publish learning resources created in the course of the TRANSIt course. ODS project (Open Discovery Space: A sociallypowered and multilingual open learning infrastructure to boost the adoption of eLearning resources) (www. opendiscoveryspace.eu) aims to demonstrate ways to involve school communities in innovative teaching and learning practices through the effective use of eLearning resources and ICT.



The TRANSIt approach

#### 3.1 The TRANSIt Competency Framework for Teachers

The TRANSIt course comprises three stages of competency with each stage identifying standards in the use of skills, knowledge and attitudes/values to different degrees. It is designed so that each stage requiring more complex standards of attainment. The work and activities of teachers at any given time will help them identify the competence stage they are at. This helps to describe teachers work in a continuum of practice. Teachers at any stage in their career may operate in different stages or parts of all stages. As teachers become familiar with the competency standards in each stage they may opt for Continual Professional Development if they feel it necessary to address a specific competency need.

Certain dimensions of a teacher's work are common to all the stages of competency. These dimensions are:

- 1. Facilitating Student Learning
- 2. Assessing and Reporting Student Learning Outcomes

- 3. Engaging in Continuing Professional Development
- 4. Establishing Partnerships and Collaborations

Each dimension describes the generic characteristics of teachers' work that are central to their professional effectiveness. Within these dimensions are indicators of effective practice which are competency-related professional actions. These indicators provide examples of the professional behaviours likely to be demonstrated by teachers who have attained a particular competency standard.

Each competency standard is a statement of the level of competency a teacher exhibits for that dimension. In the TRANSIt training framework there is a qualitative scale for every competence. Each competence at a specific level consists of a set of sub competences. The teacher must attain all sub-competences, so as to master a competence at a specific stage. Professional excellence in the context of competence-based learning involves teachers engaging in all dimensions. These correspond to the three stages identified below.

TRANSIt Competency Framework for Teachers						
Dimension	Stages					
	Stage 1	Stage 2	Stage 3			
Facilitating Student Learning	Engage students in purposeful and appropriate learning experiences	Cater for diverse student learning styles and needs through consistent application of a wide range of teaching strategies	Use exemplary teaching strategies and techniques that meet the needs of individual students, groups and/or classes of students in a highly responsive and inclusive manner			
Assessing and Reporting Student Learning Outcomes	Monitor, assess, record and report student learning outcomes appropriately	Apply comprehensive systems of assessment and reporting strategies in relation to attainment of learning outcomes	Consistently use exemplary assessment and reporting strategies that are highly responsive and inclusive			
Engaging in Continuing Professional Development	Reflect critically on professional experiences in order to enhance professional effectiveness	Contribute to the development of a learning community	Engage in a variety of professional learning activities that promote critical self- reflection and the development of a learning community			
Establishing Partnerships and Collaborations	Establish partnerships with students, colleagues, parents and other caregivers	Support student learning through partnerships and teamwork with members of the school community and other school communities	Facilitate teamwork within the school community, nationally and internationally			

Table 1 TRANSIt Teacher Competency framework

As teachers become familiar with the competency standards in each stage they may opt for Continual Professional Development if they feel it necessary to address a specific competency need. The framework has three stages, with each stage requiring more complex standards of attainment.

Professional excellence involves teachers engaging in all dimensions. Dimensions 1 and 2 "Facilitating Student Learning" and "Assessing and Reporting Student Learning Outcomes" are critical in teaching practice and articulate effective interaction between teacher and student. Dimensions like "Engaging in Continuing Professional Development", and "Establishing Partnerships and Collaborations" describe the working environment that supports effective teaching (Western Australia - Department of Education, 2009).

#### 3.2 The TRANSIt Training Process

The TRANSIt training process is structured as a competency development programme, from registration until final assessment with the optional delivery of an award system based on Open Badges. The following figure outlines the processes teachers will engage in when activating the course.



Figure 1 Training progression from registration to awards

Figure 1 illustrates the training progression from registration to awarding. The first time a teacher registers to participate in a module of the course and completes the registration the process begins with a skills check.

Skills Check: When a teacher is invited to perform a Skill Check, they complete a simple exercise where they will be presented with a checklist and will check the competencies they believe they already have. Example of the questions included in the skills check is as follows:

- What do you hope to gain from this training course?
- How do feel about your competence to teach Transversal Key Competencies?
- What areas do you feel training is needed to teach the Transversal Key Competencies?
- How can these training needs be met in TRANSIt's online tools and training modules?
- When will you plan to take part in the training?
- How important is it to gain an Open Badge when you complete the training?

Teachers will then be invited to use the results of the skills check to build their first version of their e-Portfolio, by providing evidence confirming their declared competencies. Teachers can use their own e-Portfolio or one provided by TRANSIt If teachers feel they have no evidence of competencies at this stage they can add them in later. Planning Activities: The next step is the planning of the learning activities teachers will engage in. For this, teachers will refer to their skill-check again, but this time, to help them establish the competencies they would like to acquire.

Based on the competencies a teacher decides to acquire (e.g. "Engage students in purposeful and appropriate learning experiences") they will identify the type of evidence they will need to produce to demonstrate the competencies. As the training module is about supporting the acquisition of key competencies, teachers should take into account the European Key Competence Framework to define the type of product, processes, lesson plans etc. that will contribute to the:

- acquisition of key competencies by their learners;
- development of their own targeted competencies.

Teachers will be supported in this phase by the TRANSIt team, as well as with examples of products or artefacts they might want to use from their own resources and re-

17

search. There will be some 'mini-lessons' available also for teachers to use if necessary to support their learning activities.

Doing: In this step, a teacher might have decided to create a lesson plan to submit to other colleagues in their school. By keeping a journal of their activities, collecting information, writing narratives and reflections, they will develop valuable information to add to their ePortfolio for collation of evidence of their work.

Collating Evidence and Review: After completing the "Doing" phase the teacher will add as much evidence as they feel necessary in their e-Portfolio to reflect their newly attained competencies. The e-Portfolio is then submitted to a member of the TRANSIt team for review. There may be some follow-up questions, and if the reviewer is satisfied, an Open Badge is issued to the teacher (optional).

As there are time limits set at the outset of the course, it is possible that some assignments might not be finalised on time. The main objective of this course is to get teachers to practice the competency-based (or outcome-based) learning approach. If teachers have demonstrated their ability to develop a competency-based approach in their teaching, they will receive an Open Badge recognising this competency. It is hoped that by participating in this course, which has been designed as competency-based activities and lessons, teachers will be likely to transfer this experience in their own working environment.

#### 3.2.1 TRANSIt learning outcomes

The TRANSIt expected learning outcomes are the following and according to them the training modules have been designed:

#### 1. Design

1.1. Derive Learning Objectives from a Key Competency Framework

1.2. Design a Learning Scenario/Programme for Acquisition of Key Competencies 1.3. Derive Assessment Plan from Learning Objectives

1.4. Plan Monitoring and Reporting

#### 2. Prepare

2.1. Prepare Learning Environment for Acquisition of Key Competencies

2.2. Identify / Select / Adapt / Develop Learning Material and Technologies Supporting Relevant Practice for Acquisition of Key Competencies

2.3. Identify / Select / Adapt / Set-up Technologies Enhancing Learning and Assessment

#### 3. Run

3.1. Run a Learning Scenario/Programme for Acquisition of Key Competencies

3.2. Use Digital Technologies to Support Learning and Assessment

3.3. Monitor and Assess Learning to Inform Further Learning

#### 4. Review

4.1. Review an Educational Scenario/Programme for Acquisition of Key Competences

#### 3.2.2 Cross-referencing TRANSIt Learning Outcomes and TRANSIt Competency Framework

A purposeful and appropriate learning experience must be linked to a competency framework. The TRANSIt training approach incorporates this philosophy. The following table demonstrates the integration of the Learning Outcomes of the TRANSIt training programme (left column) with the TRANSIt Competency Framework Dimensions (top row). This table gives an indication of the general competencies learners will be developing while progressing through the TRANSIt programme. The numbers in the cells refer to the stages of competency (Table 1) that can be attained in each dimension.

Competency Framework / Learning Outcomes	Facilitatin g Student Learning	Assessing and Reportin g Student Learning Outcome s	Engaging in Continuing Professional Developmen t	Establishing Partnerships and Collaboratio n
Design				
Derive Learning Objectives from a Key Competency Framework	1			
Design a Learning Sequence/Scenario/Programm e for Acquisition of Key Competencies	1, 2, 3			2, 3
Derive Assessment Plan from Learning Objectives		1, 2, 3		2, 3
Plan Monitoring and Reporting		1, 2, 3		
Prepare				
Prepare Learning Environment for Acquisition of Key Competencies	1, 2, 3			2, 3
Identify / Select / Adapt / Develop Learning Material Supporting Relevant Practice for Acquisition of Key Competencies	1, 2, 3			2, 3
Identify / Select / Adapt / Set- up Technologies Enhancing Learning and Assessment	1, 2, 3			2, 3
Run				
Run a Learning Sequence/Scenario/Programm e for Acquisition of Key Competencies	1, 2, 3			2, 3
Use Digital Technologies to Support Learning and Assessment	1, 2, 3			
Monitor and Assess Learning to Inform Further Learning		1, 2, 3		2, 3
Review				
Review a Learning Sequence/Scenario/Programm e for Acquisition of Key Competencies			1, 2, 3	1,2,3

### Table 2 Cross-reference table between TRANSIt learning outcomes and competency framework (numbers refer to the competency Stages)

#### 3.3 Training Methodology

The TRANSIt training programme is an innovative approach to allow teachers to acquire the skills and competencies to teach their students the Transversal Key Competencies. This training course could be described as a journey of discovery using the constructivist approach. The teachers participating in the training will work and learn from the activities they carry out in their own classrooms. The work will involve:

- Creating lesson plans
- Creating Educational Scenarios
- Self-reflection
- Self-assessment.

The work can also include peer-to-peer assessment and working in collaborative groups, sharing ideas resources and best practices.

When participating in the course the teacher will recognise and utilize the competencies they already have and build on these to become of aware of additional competencies and skills which they may wish to pursue and develop. The training course is designed in a roadmap style where teachers can pick a competency stage (in a course module or sub-module) of their choice. Having completed it they can then move onto the next stage.

As in all innovative training courses (and particularly this one where the national curricula in each participating country are different) ideally the teacher should decide how best to introduce the Transversal Key Competencies to facilitate the teaching of the national curriculum. There will be exemplars and best practice materials to help the teacher in this task. The modules contain broad tasks, described as outcomes, which reflect competence acquisition, which each teacher could deliver in their classrooms. Included will be guidelines of best practice, resources and reading materials necessary to support the teacher developing and delivering the material. All this material will be available on the TRANSIt portal through ODS and from the resources which teachers contribute as they carry out their training.

#### 3.4 Cycles of implementation-Timetable

TRANSIt training programme is spanned into two imple-

mentation phases. The first training cycle is scheduled for the period September 2013 – January 2014 and the second training cycle for the period March 2014 – September 2014. Additionally, three 5days teachers training courses (summer/winter school) took place open for participations from teachers all around Europe. The implementation of the training program includes extended cycles of school centred work. Teachers will continuously give feedback to the academic team about their experiences gained in the classroom. This will not only increase the motivation of the teachers, and give weight to their practical experiences, but also provide the necessary cross-links between theory and practice. Upon suggestions of the teachers, the project team performed the necessary adjustments to the training approach.



Figure 2 Development of TRANSIt training framework

### 3.5 The Design of the Training Curriculum (face to face workshops)

It was decided that the training material should comprise of both generic content, providing high level information relevant to all partner countries, and local content and examples that are only of interest to particular countries. The training material will therefore comprise of theoretical material to introduce topics and concepts and practical material to bring the theory to life – with a particular weighting on the latter.

The above training requirements were then further divided into six (6) distinct areas of commonality that would each form key parts of the three (3) hours of seminar based training. The duration of the training was adapted according to the findings of the Needs Analysis Report. The training sessions are the following ones:

1. Introduction and overview of the course and the TRANSIt Project (30 minutes): This would com-

prise an introductory section to the training objectives, means, and the philosophy of the TRANSIt Project.

- Approaches to competence based learning (CBL) teaching: principles, ideas (20 minutes): This section will try to promote the competence based approach to teachers by demonstrating the benefits regarding the increase of student interest and motivation, as well as the enhancement of students' competences and 21st century skills (critical thinking, communication, collaboration).
- 3. Learning Design Use Cases (30 minutes): This would comprise an introductory section to Searching, Retrieving, Authoring, Uploading and Annotating Content with the presentation of the concepts of Learning Resources, Repositories & Metadata, Learning Activities, Learning Courses/Lesson Plans/ Programmes and relevant Web 2.0 Technologies.
- 4. Assessment/Awarding Framework (30 minutes): This would outline how holistic, authentic assessment can be used for evaluating students' acquired competences, such as e-portfolio assessment, rubrics, peer & self-assessment, Open Badges.
- 5. Practical training on creating a CBL scenario (50 minutes): A detailed demonstration would be provided on searching and using learning objects in the classroom following a competence based learning approach. Furthermore, the annotation process using social tags in order to assess the scenario and in order it to be reused will be demonstrated.
- Closing Session (20 minutes): This would provide an opportunity to remind attendees of the more important aspects of the training and the benefits, of applying competence based approaches.

#### 3.6 The TRANSIt Training Modules

For competency based teaching and learning to be effective it must:

- List Competencies to be developed
- Include a level of acceptable performance
- Describe the Context in which this will happen
- Include Key Teaching Procedures such as:
  - Generate interest and teaching approach
  - Presentation of Subject Matter

- Application
- Evaluation and Assessment

The following represents the layout of the content of the online modules available on the TRANSIt portal page. Three stages of competency are listed for many of the sub-modules. These stages are linked with the Open Badges which are optionally offered for participation in the course.

For each Module there is a description of the aims and objectives of the module followed by the sub-module titles contained in it. The Tutorials associated with the Module are listed for reference.

Each sub-module lists information on the learning activities and a description of the context and success criteria outcomes associated with completing it. Competency criteria are specified and associated with the sub-module to help the teacher to target a specific competency stage. Any pre-requisite necessary before a sub-module is commenced are also shown. This is very important for teachers to identify where to begin their journey on the roadmap. Also listed with each sub-module are resources for further studying; documents, articles, videos, podcasts or examples of best practice.

Teachers are encouraged to add resources as they participate in the course particularly in the stage 2 and stage 3 competencies. Other resources will also be available which could include documents relating specifically to the Key Competences, the portal, or other technical information which the teacher may need regarding e-portfolio management and creation. Finally, examples of evidence which the TRANSIt tutors are seeking for the purposes of awarding badges are mentioned.

The TRANSIt modules are:

- Module 1: Design Learning
- Module 2: Prepare Learning
- Module 3: Run Learning
- Module 4: Review Learning

# 3.6.1 Module 1. Design Learning / Learning Design Description:

At the first stage of the voyage of discovery the teacher will derive learning objectives from the Key Competency Framework. The teacher will use an online journal throughout the modules as part of the development of their e-portfolio. The journal will list the chosen Key Competencies the teachers wants to teach and it will contain a description of how it will be linked to the national curriculum and associated subjects.

Module 1 contains four sub-modules. It aims to build competency in designing learning plans for teaching Transversal Key Competences, deriving assessment, monitoring and reporting.

The sub-modules in this module are:

- 1.1 Derive Learning Objectives from the Key Competency Framework
- 1.2 Design a Learning Sequence/Scenario/Programme for Acquisition of Key Competencies
- 1.3 Derive Assessment Plan from Learning Objectives
- 1.4 Plan Monitoring and Reporting

During this module, the dimensions that will be in evidence are: Facilitating Student Learning, Assessing and Reporting Student Learning Outcomes and Establishing Partnerships and Collaborations.

#### Selecting your stage of Competency

Three stages of competency are listed for many of the sub-modules. These stages are linked with the open badge awards which are offered for participation in the course. Teachers taking each sub-module decide which competency stage is most appropriate to their individual circumstances and learning environment. For example, initially teachers may commence Stage 1 competency for each sub-module and complete a later stage based on their experience and the learning from the first stage. Some teachers may attempt stage 3 in the first instance.

#### Tutorials/Resources

Recommended tutorials in MS PowerPoint format and other documents are available to assist in completing the work of the sub-modules. Additional reading and reference material associated with each sub-module are available, if required. It is estimated that the minimum amount of time required to complete module 1 is 2 - 3 hours. This will depend on the complexity of the work and the experience and competence level of the teacher.

The following MS PowerPoint presentations are recommended to support Module 1.

- 1. What are the Transversal Key Competencies
- 2. Transversal Key Competency Criteria Breakdown
- 3. The Assessment of Key competencies in Schools
- 4. Design Competency based Training using Bloom
- 5. Teaching Approaches Planning for Instruction

The following documents are available for reference for Module 1:

- 1. Document describing the Transversal Key Competencies
- Templates for lesson plans and educational scenarios (e.g. project based learning, storyline approach, inquiry-based learning, Guided discovery, Action learning, Problem based learning, Co-operative learning available online also on ODS Portal, Glossary of teaching approaches, <u>http://portal.opendiscoveryspace.eu/tr-activity/22-glossary-teachingapproaches-669764</u>)

#### Sub-Module 1.1 Derive learning objectives form the Transversal Key competences or from the national curriculum guidelines for use in the classroom

In completing this module the teacher will identify the key competencies to be taught and include them in the lesson plan design and his online journal. The teacher will define the context in which the competencies will be developed, taking into consideration how the competency acquisition by the students will be monitored.

Specific Objective	1.1. Derive Learning Objectives from Key Competency Framework or from your National Curriculum
Context	You need to develop learning objectives to support the learning and assessment of student competencies
Main Outcome(s)	Criterion-based Learning Objectives
Pre-requisite(s)	none
Success Criteria	<ul> <li>At least 1 different criterion-based objectives</li> <li>With clearly expressed success criteria</li> <li>Well defined context to support learners' performance/activities</li> </ul>
Activities	<ul> <li>Identify the key competencies you want students to develop from a Key Competency Framework</li> <li>Define the context in which the competencies will be developed</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Define how you will measure whether or not the acquisition of a competency is successful (criteria definition)</li> </ul>
Links and Supporting References:	What is a competency framework?: http://participatoryarislearning.wordpress.com/the-framework/what-is-a- competency-framework/
	Developing a Competency Framework: http://www.mindtools.com/pages/article/newISS_91.htm
	The European framework for key competences: http://ec.europa.eu/education/lifelong-learning-policy/key_en.htm
	KeyCoNet 2012 Literature Review: Key competence development in school Education in Europe: http://keyconet.eun.org/c/document_library/get_file?uuid=3aa9009c-cb63-494f- 81fe-024fde000111&groupId=11028 Derive Learning Objectives from a Key Competency Framework
Example of evidence	Written objectives     Feedback from TRANSIt tutor     Feedback from pers or colleagues     Reflections from your journal on the process of writing objectives

#### Sub-Module 1.2 Design a Lesson Plan/Scenario/Programme for Acquisition of Key Competencies

Three stages of competency acquisition are available to the teacher taking this module. The dimensions focused on are:

- Facilitating Student Learning and
- Establishing Partnerships and Collaboration.

General Objective	1.2 Design a Learning Sequence/Scenario/Programme for Acquisition of Key Competencies					
	Stage 1	Stage 2	Stage 3			
Specific Objective	Design a Lesson Plan/Learning <u>Sequence</u> for Acquisition of Key competences in your classroom	Design a <u>Cross-</u> <u>Curricular Learning</u> <u>Scenario</u> for Acquisition of Key Skills	Design an <u>integrated</u> <u>Learning Programme</u> for Acquisition of Key Skills at Institutional Level			
Context	You want to develop a sequence to teach key skills in your classroom	You want to integrate the development of key skills across two or more courses or disciplines suitable for diverse learning styles and with a consistent application of a wide range of teaching strategies	You want to make the acquisition of key competences an integral component of the institution's learning strategy across all teaching			
Main Outcome(s )	A lesson plan	A cross-curricular learning scenario	An integrated learning programme			
Pre- requisite(s )	<ul><li>1.1. Derive Learning Objectives from a Key Competency Framework</li><li>1.3 Derive Assessment Plan from Learning objectives</li></ul>	Stage 1 competencies	Stage 2 competencies			
Success Criteria	One Lesson Plan           • Covering at least 1 Competence from Transversal key competency framework           • Clearly describing the learning outcomes           • Identifying the skills, knowledge and values required to achieve the learning outcomes           • Exploiting naturally occurring opportunities in regular (disciplinary) teaching           • Reviewed and accepted by the TRANSIt tutor and/or at least 2 peers operating at the same or higher stage	One Cross-Curricular Learning Plan covering more than 1 courses or disciplines • Reviewed and accepted by the TRANSIt tutor and or at least 2 peers operating at the same or greater stage	One integrated Institutional Learning and Assessment Programme • covering o the whole institution o all Key Competencies • Reviewed and accepted by the TRANSIt tutor and or at least 2 peers operating at the same stage			

Activities	<ul> <li>Identify the key competencies you want to develop from a Key Competency Framework</li> <li>Derive Learning Objectives</li> <li>Derive Assessment Methods</li> <li>Define the relevant practice necessary to support the essence of the learning objective</li> <li>Derive knowledge and understanding required to achieve mastery of key competencies</li> <li>Design a Lesson Plan with a clear and transparent Assessment strategy</li> <li>Get feedback from peers</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>ibid</li> <li>Establish Learning and Assessment strategy across disciplines/classes</li> <li>Develop relevant practice across disciplines</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Ibid</li> <li>Develop an integrated learning programme</li> </ul>
Resources	ODS Toolbox, Glossary of teaching activity/22-glossary-teaching-approa project based learning, storyline app learning, Problem based learning, Co Let seniors teach sense of initiative a storytelling approaches: http://letsenterprise.eu/images/newsl	approaches, http://portal.ope iches-669764 (of particular in roach, inquiry-based learning o-operative learning) and entrepreneurship through etter/REGNO%20UNITO/L	ndiscoveryspace.eu/tr- nterest are the approaches: g, Guided discovery, Action innovative multimedia ET'SNewsletter2%20UK.pdf
	Raising Cultural Awareness; http://www.misd.net/bilingual/CulturalEtiquette.pdf         Acquiring Key Competences through Heritage Education (Manual):http://the-aqueduct.eu/download/Aqueduct-Manual_EN.pdf         How Does Project-Based Learning Work? Seven Essentials for Project-Based Learning: http://www.edutopia.org/project-based-learning-guide-implementation         Badges (MozillaWiki): https://wiki.mozilla.org/Badges         Educators Hail Launch of Make Badges—New Web Tool for Creating Digital Badges; http://www.digitaljournal.com/pr/1483276		
Example of evidence	<ul> <li>Lesson plan feedback from a TRANSIt tutor</li> <li>Feedback from peers or colleagues</li> <li>Reflections from your journal</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Learning Scenario Feedback from a TRANSIt tutor</li> <li>Feedback from peers or colleagues</li> <li>Reflections from your journal and the journals of the other authors of the Learning Scenario</li> </ul>	
Remarks on the assessment process		If the participants are from different institutions, the integration plan can refer to a fictitious institution (simulation)	

#### Module 1.3 Derive Assessment Plan from Learning Objectives

Three stages of competency acquisition are available to the teacher taking the module.

General Objective	1.3 Derive Assessment Plan from Learning Objectives		
	Stage 1	Stage 2	Stage 3
Specific Objective	Derive Assessment Plan from Learning Objectives	Derive Cross-Curricular Assessment Plan from Learning Objectives	Derive Integrated Assessment Plan from Learning Objectives
Context	You want to develop an Assessment Plan from Learning Objectives to recognise the key competencies acquired during the learning sequence or in another context (recognition of prior learning and experience)	You want to develop with colleagues and/or members <u>of the own and/or other</u> <u>school communities a</u> Cross-Curricular Assessment Plan from Learning Objectives	You want to develop an Integrated Assessment Plan at institutional level from Learning Objectives which includes teamwork with the school community, nationally and internationally.
Main Outcome(s)	Assessment Plan	Cross-Curricular Assessment Plan	Integrated Assessment Plan
Pre- requisite(s)	1.1. Derive Learning Objectives from a Key Competency Framework	Stage 1 competencies	Stage 2 competencies
Success Criteria	<ul> <li>One assessment plan</li> <li>Using at least 2 different assessment strategies[F1], one of them being learner- centred (e.g. self- or peer- assessment)</li> <li>Encouraging the recognition of prior learning and experience</li> <li>Covering at least 3 different key competencies</li> <li>Reviewed and accepted by the TRANSIt tutor and or at least 2 peers</li> </ul>	One Cross-Curricular Assessment Plan covering at least • 2 courses or disciplines • 4 Key Competencies • Reviewed and accepted by the TRANSIt tutor and or at least 2 peers	One Integrated Assessment Plan, covering: • the whole institution • all Key Competencies • Reviewed and accepted by the TRANSIt tutor and or at least 2 peers
Activities	<ul> <li>Using Criterion-Based Learning Objectives, explore possible assessment strategies</li> <li>Define the activities during which learners will produce the evidence required to know whether or not the criteria have been met</li> <li>Select the most relevant assessment strategies in relation to your learning context, e.i.it is about Key Competencies</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Using Criterion-Based Learning Objectives, explore possible cross- curricular assessment strategies</li> <li>Define the activities during which learners will produce the evidence required to know whether or not the criteria have been met</li> </ul>	• - ibid

#### Sub-Module 1.4: Plan Monitoring and Reporting

Three stages of competency acquisition are available to the teacher taking the module. All 3 stages in this module are concerned with Assessing and Reporting Student Learning Outcomes.

General Objective	1.4. Plan Monitoring and Reporting		
	Stage 1	Stage 2	Stage 3
Specific Objective	Plan Monitoring and Reporting in your classroom	Plan Monitoring and Reporting Across Classrooms and/or Disciplines	Plan Monitoring and Reporting at Institutional Level
Context	You need to monitor learning achievements in your classroom and need to report to your institution	You need to monitor learning achievements in a cross-curricular programme	You need to define an institutional strategy to monitor learning achievements in relation to key competencies
Main Outcome(s)	A monitoring plan	A cross-curricular monitoring plan	An integrated monitoring plan
Pre- requisite(s)	<ul> <li>1.1 Derive Learning Objectives from a Key Competency Framework</li> <li>1.3 Derive Assessment Plan from Learning Objectives</li> </ul>	Stage I competencies	Stage 2 competencies
Success Criteria	One Monitoring and Reporting Plan describing: oData collection methods oHow the data collected is being exploited o Reporting methods • Reviewed and accepted by the TRANSIt tutor and or at least 2 peers	One Cross-Curricular Monitoring and Reporting Plan describing: O Data collection methods oHow the data collected is being exploited oReporting methods • Reviewed and accepted by the TRANSIt tutor and or at least 2 peers operating at the same or greater stage	One Institutional Monitoring and Reporting Plan describing: oData collection methods oHow the data collected is being exploited oReporting methods oIntegration in the Quality Assurance policy • Reviewed and accepted by the TRANSIt tutor and or at least 2 peers operating at the same stage

Activities	<ul> <li>Identify the events and sources of data that can be used to monitor learning</li> <li>Define collection methods and monitoring processes</li> <li>Define reporting process</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Identify the events and sources of data that can be used to monitor learning</li> <li>Define collection methods and monitoring processes</li> <li>Define reporting process</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Identify the events and sources of data that can be used to monitor learning</li> <li>Define collection methods and monitoring processes</li> <li>Define reporting process</li> </ul>
Resources	Monitoring Student Learning in the Classroom; http://educationnorthwest.org/webfm_send/541 Between the Ideal and the Real World of Teaching; http://fcit.usf.edu/assessment/classroom/st0032november97.pdf Accommodating All Children in the Early Childhood Classroom; http://eclkc.ohs.acf.hhs.gov/hslc/tta- system/teaching/Disabilities/program%20planning/accessibility/accommodatingall.htm Guidelings for protect assessment		
Example of evidence	<ul> <li>Monitoring plan (at different stages)</li> <li>Feedback from a TRANSIt tutor</li> <li>Feedback from peers or colleagues</li> <li>Reflections from your journal</li> </ul>	• Ibid	• Ibid

#### 3.6.2 Module 2. Prepare Learning Description

Having completed the first stage of the voyage of discovery the next stage is to prepare the learning material. This module is made up of three sub-modules all of which help Prepare a Learning Environment for Acquisition of Key Competencies. Its focus in on the areas of facilitating student learning and establishing partnerships and collaborations.

The sub-modules are:

- 2.1 Prepare the Learning Environment for Acquisition of Key Competencies
- 2.2 Identify / Select / Adapt / Develop Learning Material and Technologies Supporting Relevant Practice for Acquisition of Key Competencies
- 2.3 Identify / Select / Adapt / Set-up Technologies Enhancing Learning and Assessment

#### Choosing your stage of Competency

Three stages of competency are listed for the sub-modules. These stages are link with the open badge awards which are offered for participation in the course Teachers taking each sub-module decide which competency stage is most appropriate to their individual circumstances and may for example only work in stage 1 competency for each sub-module on a first run through and may return later and complete another stage given the experience gained in the first attempt. Alternatively teachers may attempt stage 3 in all cases where possible.

#### Tutorials

The following resources may be accessed form the Open Discovery Space Training Academies http://portal. opendiscoveryspace.eu/training-academies

- 1. Introduction to ICT and WWW for educational uses http://portal.opendiscoveryspace.eu/tr-activity/ introduction-ict-and-www-educational-uses-210
- Strategies for searching information online, online resources and repositories http://portal.opendiscoveryspace.eu/tr-activity/strategies-searchinginformation-online-online-resources-and-repositories-212

- 3. Introduction to the concept of learning objects
- 4. Popular social tools and scenarios for their use in the classroom
- 5. Designing a web community for collaborative authoring of open educational resources

#### Sub-Module 2.1 Prepare Learning Environment for Acquisition of Key Competencies

This module is made up of three sub modules all of which help Prepare a Learning Environment for Acquisition of Key Competencies. Its focus is on Dimensions 1 and 4 Facilitating student learning and Establishing partnerships and collaborations. At this stage the trainee will have designed an Integrated Learning and Assessment Strategy for Acquisition of Key Competencies.

General Objective	2.1 Prepare Learning Environment for Acquisition of Key Competencies		
	Stage 1	Stage 2	Stage 3
Specific Objective	Prepare the Learning Environment for your Classroom	Prepare Cross-Curricular Learning Environment	Prepare an integrated Learning Environment in an Institution
Context	The competencies you will be teaching, how they will be assessed as well as the required knowledge and understanding have been defined.	You need to develop a cross- curricular learning environment for the acquisition of key competencies.	You need to develop an institutional learning environment for the acquisition of key competencies.
	You need to define the resources supporting the learning process, such as learning material, reference material and technologies.		
Main Outcome(s)	A learning environment supporting a <i>learning</i> plan	A learning environment supporting the cross- curricular learning scenario	A learning environment supporting an <i>integrated</i> <i>learning programme</i>
Pre- requisite(s)	<ol> <li>Design an Integrated Learning and Assessment</li> </ol>	Stage 1 competencies	Stage 2 competencies
	Strategy for Acquisition of Key Competencies 2.1 Identify / Select / Adapt / Develop Learning Material Supporting Relevant Practice for Acquisition of Key Competencies Identify / Select / Adapt / Set-up Technologies Enhancing Learning and Assessment		

Success Criteria	An operational learning environment comprising o Learning resources o Learning technologies • There is a clear relationship between the learning resources and the acquisition of key competencies • With a view for the learners and a view for the teacher (notes, recommendations, etc.)	<ul> <li>A cross-curricular learning environment</li> </ul>	An institutional learning     environment
Activities	Define the resources supporting the learning process, such as learning material, reference material and technologies. Consideration must be given to the resources and technologies available to teacher, students and school. Activities include: Searching and collating resources online Identifying the technologies and tools best suited to utilize the resource Search learning repositories Search the web	Ibid	Ibid
Resources	<ul> <li>Entries from participants</li> </ul>		
Example of evidence	Personal ePortfolio		

# Sub-Module 2.2. Identify / Select / Adapt / Develop Learning Material Supporting Relevant Practice for Acquisition of Key Competencies

General Objective 2.2. Identify / Select / Adapt / Develop Learning Material Supporting Relevant Practice for Acquisition of Key Competencies

General Objective	2.2. Identify / Select / Adapt / Develop Learning Material Supporting Relevant Practice for Acquisition of Key Competencies			
	Stage 1	Stage 2	Stage 3	
Specific Objective	Identify / Select / Adapt / Develop Learning Material Supporting Relevant Practice for Acquisition of Key Competencies	Identify / Select / Adapt / Develop Learning Material Supporting Relevant Practice for Acquisition of Key Competencies in a <u>Cross-Curricular</u> <u>Learning</u> <u>Environment</u>	Identify / Select / Adapt / Develop Learning Material Supporting Relevant Practice for Acquisition of Key Competencies <u>in a School/</u> <u>Institution</u>	
Context	You have a learning plan [F1] and you need to select / adapt / develop relevant resources to support the acquisition of Key Competencies			
Main Outcome(s)	An integrated set of learning resources: lessons, online references, assignments, simulations, games, etc. with a view for the learners and a view for the teacher (notes, recommendations, etc.).	An integrated and shared set of learning resources with a view for the learners and a view for the teacher	An integrated, updatable, institutional set of learning resources with a view for the learners and a view for the teacher	
Pre- requisite(s)	none	Stage 1 competencies	Stage 2 competencies	
Success Criteria	Learning resources o covering at least 2 key competencies	Learning resources covering o at least 5 key competencies o one of them is adapted from an existing resource	Learning resources covering o 8 key competencies	
Activities	<ul> <li>Search learning resources repositories</li> <li>Search the web</li> <li>Ask sources and feedback from experts and colleagues</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Prepare a synthetic view for learners and teaching staff</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>Prepare a synthetic view for learners and self</li> </ul>			
Resources	Resources provided by participants			
Example of evidence	List of learning resources in the ePortfolio			

Sub-Module 2.3 Identify / Select / Adapt / Set-up Technologies Enhancing Learning and Assessment

General Objective	2.3. Identify / Select / Adapt / Set-up Technologies Enhancing Learning and Assessment		
	Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3		
Specific Objective	Identify and Select Technologies Enhancing Learning and Assessment for your Classroom	Identify, Select, Adapt and Set-up Technologies Enhancing Learning and Assessment for a cross- curricular learning programme	Identify / Select / Adapt / Set-up Technologies Enhancing Learning and Assessment for an Institution
Context	You have defined the competencies you will be teaching and how they will be assessed. You now need to define the technologies supporting the learning and assessment process, such as equipment (e.g. tablets, mobile phones) software (e.g. ePortfolios).		
Main Outcome(s)	A technology enhanced learning environment	A technology enhanced learning environment	An institutional ICT plan
Pre- requisite(s)	none	Stage 1 competencies	Stage 2 competencies
Success Criteria	<ul> <li>A relevant selection of digital technologies</li> <li>o one of them to support learners with building an ePortfolio</li> <li>reviewed and accepted by the TRANSIt tutor and or at least 2 peers</li> </ul>		
Readings/vie wing	Effective Assessment in a Digital Age: http://www.jisc.ac.uk/media/documents/programmes/elearning/digiassass_eada.pdf Technology-enhanced assessment: http://www.jisc.ac.uk/whatwedo/programmes/elearning/assessment.aspx e-Portfolios - An overview: http://www.jisc.ac.uk/whatwedo/programmes/elearning/eportfolios.aspx 'Effective Practice with e-Portfolios' (JISC publication): http://www.jisc.ac.uk/whatwedo/programmes/elearning/eportfolios/effectivepracticeeportfolios.a spx Tools for 21st century learning: http://www.jisc.ac.uk/news/e-portfolios-tools-for-21st-century- learning-09-sep-2008 How can we use ePortfolios to help students reflect upon and improve their learning?: http://www.slideshare.net/dcambrid/how-can-we-use-eportfolios-to-help-students-reflect-upon- and-improve-their-learning		
	ePortfolio and competences (CAT): https://e-portfoli.wikispaces.com/		

# 3.6.3 Module 3. Run Learning Description

The module involves running a lessons or scenarios by teachers to teach the Transversal Key Competencies. It will also focus on the use of digital technologies to support learning and assessment in the classroom. The process of monitoring and assessing learning to inform further learning in a learning scenario is also tackled. There are 3 sub-modules:

- 3.1 Run a Lesson Plan/Learning Scenario/Programme for Acquisition of Key Competencies
- 3.2 Use Digital Technologies to Support Learning and Assessment

3.3 Monitor and Assess Learning to Inform Further Learning

#### Choosing your stage of Competency

Three stages of competency are listed for the sub-modules. These stages are link with the open badge awards which are offered for participation in the course Teachers taking each sub-module decide which competency stage is most appropriate to their individual circumstances and may for example only work in stage 1 competency for each sub-module on a first run through and may return later and complete another stage given the experience gained in the first attempt. Alternatively teachers may attempt stage 3 in all cases where possible.

3.1 Run a Learning Scenario/Programme for Acquisition of Key Competencies

General Objective	3.1 Run a Lesson Plan/Learning Scenario/Programme for Acquisition of Key Competencies		
	Stage 1	Stage 2	Stage 3
Specific Objective	Run a Lesson Plan for Acquisition of Key Competencies	Run a cross- curriculum Scenario for Acquisition of Key Competencies	Run an Integrated Learning Programme for Acquisition of Key Competencies within the School/Institution
Context	You are running a learning sequence for the acquisition of Key Competencies based on a <i>learning</i> <i>plan</i> . For that, you will call for the support of <i>learning technologies</i> , to support, monitor and assess learning key competencies.	You are running a cross-curriculum learning scenario for the acquisition of Key Competencies. For that, you will call for the support of <i>learning</i> <i>technologies</i> , to support, monitor and assess learning key competencies.	You are running an Integrated learning programme for the acquisition of Key Competencies.
Pre- requisite(s)	Use Digital Technologies to Support Learning and Assessment (Teach, Monitor, Assess, Provide Feedback) Monitor and Assess Learning to Inform Further Learning		

Success Criteria	During the running of the learning sequence, you: • Provide support and guidance to learners • Monitor learning progress • Provide Informed feedback		
Activities	Activities include running a learning scenario for the acquisition of Key Competencies based on a learning plan. Use learning technologies, to support, monitor and assess learning key competencies. This could include a single class or cross-curricular approaches or instruction wide activities.		
Readings/vie wing	To improve student learning through technology: http://www.calvertnet.k12.md.us/departments/diit/documents/fulltechplan.pdf Integrating Technology with Student-Centered Learning: http://www.nmefoundation.org/getmedia/befa9751-d8ad-47e9-949d- bd649f7c0044/integrating Critical Issue: Using Technology to Improve Student Achievement: http://www.ncrel.org/sdrs/areas/issues/methods/technlgv/te800.htm Developing Lessons with Technology: http://www.pearsonhighered.com/assets/hip/us/hip_us_pearsonhighered/samplechapter/0 136101259.pdf What is e-learning? (Webopedia): http://www.webopedia.com/TERM/E/e_learning.html Transforming Assessment: http://www.transformingassessment.com/ Classroom Technology Explained: eAssessment (YouTube Video):		

#### 3.2 Use Digital Technologies to Support Learning and Assessment

General Objective	3.2 Use Digital Technologies to Support Learning and Assessment			
	Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3			
Specific Objective	Use Digital Technologies to Support Learning and Assessment in the classroom	Use Digital Technologies to Support Learning and Assessment in a <u>cross-</u> <u>curricular programme</u>	Use Digital Technologies to Support Learning and Assessment at institutional level	
Context	You want to use digital technologies to support the implementation of a learning sequence	You want to use digital technologies to support the implementation of a cross- curricular learning sequence	You want to use digital technologies to support the implementation of an integrated learning programme	
Main Outcome(s)	Classroom Digital Technology Plan	Cross-curricular Digital Technology Plan	Institutional Digital Technology Plan	
----------------------	--	--	--	--
Pre- requisite(s)	None	None	None	
Success Criteria	Digital technologies are used to: • Collect Evidence to Monitor learning • Support individual learners • Assess key competencies	Ibid, in the context of a cross-curricular programme		
Activities	This module involves using digital technologies to support learning and assessment in the classroom.			
Resources	Competency-based Learning (1/3), What i https://dl.dropboxusercontent.com/u/5273 https://dl.dropboxusercontent.com/u/5273 Competency-based Learning (2/3), What i https://dl.dropboxusercontent.com/u/5273 https://dl.dropboxusercontent.com/u/5273 Competency-based Learning (3/3), How d https://dl.dropboxusercontent.com/u/5273 https://dl.dropboxusercontent.com/u/5273 https://dl.dropboxusercontent.com/u/5273 https://dl.dropboxusercontent.com/u/5273 https://dl.dropboxusercontent.com/u/5273	is Competency-Based Learning 2975/CBL1.pdf; 2975/CBL1.mov is the place of assessment?: 2975/CBL2.pdf; 2975/CBL2.mov io we assess competencies?: 2975/CBL3.pdf; 2975/CBL3.mov tered Learning (Nellie Mae Ed befa9751-d8ad-47e9-949d-bdf	g?: lucation Foundation): 54917c0044/integrating	

# 3.3 Monitor and Assess Learning to Inform Further Learning

General Objective	3.3 Monitor and Assess Learning to Inform Further Learning			
	Stage 1	Stage 2	Stage 3	
Specific Objective	Monitor and Assess Learning to Inform Further Learning in a Learning Sequence	Monitor and Assess Learning to Inform Further Learning in a Cross-Curricular Programme	Monitor and Assess Learning to Inform Further Learning at Institutional Level	
Context	You need to monitor and Assess Learning to Inform Further Learning in the classroom		You need to implement a quality assurance strategy to monitor learning, assess the outcomes and inform future practice and strategy	

Main Outcome(s)	<ul> <li>Analysis of monitoring data</li> <li>Assessment decisions regarding learners' acquisition of key competencies</li> <li>Open Badges delivered</li> <li>Revised Learning Sequence</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Analysis of monitoring data</li> <li>Assessment decisions regarding learners' acquisition of key competencies</li> <li>Open Badges delivered</li> <li>-Revised cross- curricular Learning Programme</li> </ul>	
Pre- requisite(s)	None		
Success Criteria	<ul> <li>Learners successfully achieving the demonstration ok key skills at the end of the learning sequence</li> <li>Sufficient quantity and range of data is being collected to monitor and assess learning</li> <li>review of the monitoring and assessment process by at least 2 peers and/or one TRANSIt tutor</li> </ul>		
Activities	<ul> <li>Collect evidence to monitor learning</li> <li>Review evidence and take action accordingly</li> <li>Provide informed and supportive feedback to learners</li> <li>Celebrate learning achievements (e.g. by providing Open Badges to the participants)</li> <li>Inform peers and management</li> </ul>		
Resources:	Critical Issue: Using Technology to Improve St http://www.ncrel.org/sdrs/areas/issues/methods Transforming Assessment Rethinking assessme 2.0: http://www.transformingassessment.com/ Classroom Technology Explained: e-Assessment http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bxXITkDgn What is an e-Portfolio? (Regis University): http://academic.regis.edu/LAAP/eportfolio/basi What is an ePortfolio? (Clemson University): http://www.clemson.edu/academics/programs/e Electronic portfolio (Wikipedia): http://en.wikip What is an ePortfolio? University of Derby (Yo http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=YZsfvBqBr How to Build Better ePortfolios: http://www.guide2digitallearning.com/tools_test Introducing Open Badges: a new online standar http://openbadges.org/ A Short Story About Open Badges (video): http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Xe4xDgNbbl Getting started issuing Open Badges: http://ope	udent Achievement: /technlgy/te800.htm mt in a participatory digital nt (Youtube Video): mA ics_what.htm portfolio/about pedia.org/wiki/Electronic uTube): cY chnologies/how_build_bett d to recognize and verify I 16Y#t=10 nbadges.org/issue/	world - Assessment

	Developing Lessons with Technology: http://www.pearsonhighered.com/assets/hip/us/ 259.pdf	hip_us_pearsonhighered/sr	implechapter/0136101
	Spanish resource: Good practice (Primary education): Competenc (CAT) http://blocs.xtee.cat/gransrellinars1213/f resoluci%C3%B3-Modalitat-compatibilitat.pdf	e based-learning activity at iles/2013/03/KILIAN-JOR	round a sportsman <u>NET-2-baixa-</u>
Example of evidence	<ul> <li>Reflections</li> <li>Artefacts</li> <li>ePortfolio excerpts</li> <li>Feedback from learners on their learning experience</li> </ul>	• Ibid	Ibid

#### 3.6.4 Module 4. Review Learning

# 4.1 Review a Learning Scenario/Programme for Acquisition of Key Competencies Description

Review a Learning scenario for Acquisition of Key Competencies. This module involves the teacher reviewing their own performance and that of the learners. It will involve noting and report your findings and plan further action. This will involve a sharing of findings and discoveries with colleges other learners on the course or at an intuition wide basis. There is one module in this course.

General Objective	4.1 Review a Learning Sequence/Sco	enario/Programme for Acqu	isition of Key Competencies
	Stage 1	Stage 2	Stage 3
Specific Objective	Review a Lesson Plan for Acquisition of Key Competencies	Review a Learning Scenario for Acquisition of Key Competencies	Review a Learning Programme for Acquisition of Key Competencies
Context	After running a lesson plan for the acquisition of Key Competencies, you need to review your own performance and that of the learners, report your findings and plan further action	After running with colleagues a learning scenario for the acquisition of Key Competencies, you need to review your performance, share your findings with your colleagues and plan further action	Based on the collection of data from colleagues, review the institutional strategy, report findings and plan further action
Main Outcome(s)	<ul> <li>Review of the lesson plan</li> <li>Revised professional development plan</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Review of the cross- curricular learning scenario</li> <li>Recommendations for improvement</li> <li>Revised professional development plan</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Review of the institutional learning programme</li> <li>Recommendations for a revised institutional strategy for the teaching of Key Competencies</li> </ul>

Main Outcome(s)	<ul> <li>Review of the lesson plan</li> <li>Revised professional development plan</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Review of the cross- curricular learning scenario</li> <li>Recommendations for improvement</li> <li>Revised professional development plan</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Review of the institutional learning programme</li> <li>Recommendations for a revised institutional strategy for the teaching of Key Competencies</li> </ul>
Pre- requisite(s)	None		
Success Criteria	<ul> <li>Recommendations for improving professional practice in relation to the acquisition and assessment of key competencies</li> <li>Revised professional development plan</li> <li>Feedback from at least 2 peers on the recommendations and revised plan</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Recommendations for improving professional practice and the cross- curricular learning scenario</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Recommendations for improving professional practice and the institutional learning scenario</li> </ul>
Activities	<ul> <li>Reflect on professional experience in relation to running a learning sequence on key competencies</li> <li>Report findings and get feedback from peers</li> <li>Plan further professional development</li> </ul>	Ibid as Stage 1	<ul> <li>Ibid as Stage 1</li> </ul>
Resources	Review Strategies: http://www.mindto Discovery Learning for the 21st Centu learning in effectiveness in the 21st Co http://teach.valdosta.edu/are/Litreview Elements of Effective e-Learning Des http://www.irrodl.org/index.php/irrod	ools.com/pages/article/newISS rry: What is it and how does it entury? (Joyce A. Castronova) /s/vol1no1/castronova_litr.pdf ign: /article/view/217/300	<u>05.htm</u> compare to traditional
Example of evidence	<ul> <li>Data collected during monitoring, e.g. example of things that went well and not so well, feedback from learners, etc.</li> <li>Revised lesson plan, learning scenario</li> <li>Revised continuing professional development plan</li> </ul>		



# The TRANSIt implementation (technical tools)

In this chapter the TRANSIt teacher training platform & ePortfolio tool are presented, with instructions for use, as well as two cases for creating and sharing your competence based learning educational resources with use of the ODS and Octopus Authoring Tool. Moreover the links to the TRANSIt multilingual communities on ODS Portal and the dedicated workspace on Octopus are presented, so that users can search the available CBL resources created by participants in TRANSIt implementation activities or create their own.

#### 4.1 TRANSIt teacher training platform & ePortfolio tool

The entry point for the TRANSIt teacher training platform is the TRANSIt portal which is accessible at the link http:transit.cti.gr/moodle/

The TRANSIt portal is meant to serve as a web based software platform for training modules and training content developed by the TRANSIt project. It aims at covering needs regarding optimal teacher training on KCA issues and serving as the teacher's community infrastructure. The TRANSIt portal is based on open source off the shelf software components that are integrated in order to provide a seamless user experience. The two major portal building blocks are Moodle which is utilized as the teacher training platform, and Mahara which serves as the platform that can be used by the involved teachers' students as an e-portfolio showcase.

Moodle and Mahara are integrated with each other and behave as a single portal infrastructure, as users enjoy a seamless experience when switching between the two platforms. Single Sign On, a shared look and feel along with similar navigation logic for both tools ensure that users do not feel a transition between software tools. Moodle is utilized as the portal's learning environment where teachers interact to produce, evaluate and understand knowledge content via sharing artefacts in the specific context. Mahara is used as the portal's eportfolio environment. Teachers take a dual role, as they are direct e-portfolio users on one hand, but also serve as mentors that foster students to utilize the e-portfolio TRANSIt module. School teachers use the TRANSIt eportfolio module in order to provide e-portfolio functionality to their students.

#### Login

Users gain access to the TRANSIt portal through a login process. This is necessary so that a personalized experience is achieved for each user and in order to reduce spam. Guest login is available.



Figure 3 TRANSIt login form

#### Sign up

There are two ways to create new TRANSIt portal users.

#### New user creation by administrator

An administrator can create a new user through the "add new user" page which is available only for the administrator role. The administrator enters information such as username, password, name, role etc.

a a produce		1. Contract (1. Contract)	
RANSE IRAN	ti-recal la	of coulorpoints to specia	ng learning: Training balanen) in pompehenca basad education
	-		1.000
and the second se		- 110-00-00	
March Street			
Services -		10000	
All forms			
		in the second seco	
Destinant 2 like ranne			
the product press		the state of the second state of the second	
No. disease in the			framework and the second state of the second s
Charles and			Aurent and a second
P. Institution			
Water States		100.0000 CT 20	in the second se
T loss			
and a second		(may 2)	
a second second			
Webseld and set			
W togo and inter			
Without and			
Prototo and		- Tradingson	
Contract with contracts			
1 January		11-d totals	The state of the second of some is the fact that there a
1.000		(And party of the second	THE PERSON AND A DESCRIPTION OF A DESCRI
V. Doolan		1011 L	Standard R. 1977 Million and Market Standards
A literature		Contraction (2)	a second s
- Barris			

Figure 4 New user screen, administrator mode

#### User self sign up

The email-based self-registration authentication method enables users to create their own accounts via the 'Create new account' button on the login page.

-		he was tested to
TRANSPORT	Alternations competenced for ideiong teaming: Training teachers in competence failed a	discution in the second
(-1)		
1911		
the contractor and	all in the second s	
A		
10000		
	A second side and a famous state ( Additional ) has no state ( Additional ) and a second state ( ) as descended have to	
Passade	1.00.00	
state		
Constanting of		
Station 1		
1000		
10.000		
1 department		
	Autor Longer	

Figure 5 Self-registration sign up page

#### Languages

The portal supports a superset of all partner country languages regarding user interface and uploaded content. Language packs allow trouble free expansion to other languages if required. Automatic language detection is available, based on the user's browser language setting. One specific language can be selected as default. This setting is overridden by the user's browser setting. A user can change the displayed language. This setting also overrides the portal default language.



Figure 6 Available languages

#### Users, roles and permissions

The TRANSIt learning environment follows a different role/permission scheme compared to the e-portfolio module, in order to meet different user role needs as the prior is aimed at teachers learning and the latter at student displaying and social networking.

#### Moodle: user roles

Regarding the learning environment, a role is a set of permissions that apply to it vertically. Roles are assigned to users in specific contexts. The combination of roles and context define what a user can and cannot do. Contexts form a hierarchy. Any role with a specific permission for one context inherits this permission to lower level contexts. Roles are defined and edited by the portal administrator, who can assign capabilities to roles. Users on a Moodle platform are always assigned one or more roles – again, just like in a real learning environment. Depending on one's role, one has certain privileges or permissions and is allowed to do (and see) more or fewer things on the platform and within a particular course – or has more duties.

The top role in Moodle is called "administrator role". The person with this role can also install additional modules or plug-ins.

Users granted the "teacher role" have full editing rights for their courses and are in full control of the students enrolled in your course.

Learners are assigned the "student role". "Student role users cannot create or edit Moodle activities or items, and cannot access items hidden by a teacher. Also they do not have access to course reports or statistics.

#### Mahara: user roles

The top role in Mahara is called "site administrator". The person with this role can also install additional modules or plug-ins, create new users and generally execute almost any task on the e-portfolio module.

the start		CONTRACTOR IN THE OWNER
The American States	a management	disc man.
	Section of the s	tand excelor
A service and A serv	Add a resu state researchand Antonio pyrae ando	

Figure 7 Mahara user administration page

Learners are assigned the user role. They can use the e-portfolio functionality to showcase their artifacts, communicate and connect with other users, join groups etc.

St. 1 marked and	1 C 1 C 1 C 1 C 1 C 1 C 1 C 1 C 1 C 1 C				4.8	
COLUMN AND A				-	4.4	
	-	÷.			-	
TRANSIC TRANSIC	ersille	y competences for visit	orginaring Transgonation in competence based education			
en alta fille	~	Transa Bardana	-			
No. of Concession, Name			Series .	( instant	(m)	
the page of the pa		Parent -	Name and the set of th	and a second	4.8.9	
(manual control of the second se		Care and	The second second second		****	
		incer.	States, state serving print intern Allering Surger, 76 million are print, however,	-		
And Designed Texas	1.0	Record Report and	And strate with a state of a state or got states for the state of produ-	1000		
No. of Manager			and the second se	Solved assess has been avoid an address of the same	-	
E Concern Systems Concernment Concernment Concernment		-	the state of the second second second second second second		* * *	
		-	Normal Press.	-		
		And in case of the local division of the loc			1.11	
Witness			and the second s			
Concession.						
Without solid little						
* 11 differences						
B come de la competence						

Figure 8 Role creation and permission administration page

#### Content

The TRANSIt portal is capable of hosting a variety of content formats that are utilized to support teacher training by being added to courses. Content files can be presented as individual items or bundled in folders. Available file formats include pictures, documents, spreadsheets, audio/video files, folders, IMS formatted material, external URLs, html files etc. Permissions regarding access to content are derived from role/context combination.

The second			_	stations	House and
The set of the second s		1 1 			-
1         0         0           2         2         0         0           3         2         0         0           4         2         0         0           5         2         0         0         0           6         2         0         0         0         0           6         2         0	Correction Biological and a sector of the se				ند. اندر اندر

Figure 9 Available upload content types

## Courses

Courses serve as repositories for specific thematic areas. Essentially it is an area where a teacher places learning materials and activities such as assignments and quizzes for students to complete. Each course has a main page that is managed by the teacher. Various course layouts are available such as weekly format, topics format and social format.

	N			Date in a
TEANLE TRANS	Veenal be	y competences for Helico	inaning Training Inacials in computerior based established in	
aniasta		Edit course settings		
-		12112		1.000
No. of Concession, No. of Conces		Contract (		
Promo-		and designed at		
and the second se	332	1 m m m m m m	Aug. 1	
A straight the second			Res 1.	
The state of the second			2 7 mm 107.78	
A second		and the second s	and the second se	
Marian Tana		*Desiration		
No. of Concession, Name		10000	CONVERSION OF THE OWNER.	
. Berl				
HARD & PROTECT				

Figure 10 Add new course page

Students can be enrolled manually by the teacher, automatically by the administrator, or they can be allowed to enroll themselves.

0.100						And a second
100 - Hanne - Toning -						÷
TRANSP. TRANSP.	Combil be	competences bit Metang learning. T	turning fourthers in	competinica bina	ed inducation	
utortine .		Enrolled users				
n - Ar Freitre Margadigen		Sector and a sector of	¥5.			1.1.1
Planta al			215			
Antonio Charles		Part and Partners * 2 Part attents	-	Acres 1	Street Destroyed Autom	
<ul> <li>A conserve of conserve</li> </ul>						in the second
ADDRESS OF THE OWNER						

Figure 11 Enrolling users to a course

Courses are organized in categories, which can be added/ deleted/edited/moved. Users enroll to course categories. Course categories can be nested because sub-categories are supported. For each course various attributes are editable such as a full and short name, course category, start/end dates, description, summary etc.

#### Workshop

Workshop displays similar functionality as activities, introducing peer assessment options. After submission there are two grades for a student: their own work and their peer assessments of other students' work. The submissions are assessed using a structured assessment form made by the course teacher and which facilitates multi-criteria assessment. Each participant gets two grades, one regarding how well they did on their assignment and another regarding how well they assessed their peers.

#### Badges

TRANSIt offers badge functionality in a way totally compatible with Mozilla Open Badges. Badges created in the TRANSIt portal can be displayed on the user's portal profile or can be published to their Open Badges backpack. There are two kinds of badges: TRANSIt badges which are available portal-wide and are related to TRAN-SIt wide activities such as finishing a set of courses and, course badges which are offered to users enrolled to a course and are related to achievements accomplished inside a course.

- 0	10			Disc.
				4.04
TRAVER TH	Nilera b	y consellencia ha)	Mary wavery Training matters in competitive based education	
Million .		* ladge intich		14424
<ul> <li>Alexand</li> <li>Alexand</li></ul>		-		
n Marine Marines T. Marine Marines T. Marines Marines			-1 min.	
B Indianan B Ingenina B Ingenina D Ingenin I Ingeni I Ingeni				
Torona inter-		*)aue (#215	-	

Figure 12 Badge creation page

Badges can be issued automatically upon an event (i.e. course completion, completion of a course set, assignment completion etc) or manually by a user that has been granted a badge issuing role. Badges can be set to expire after a specific expiration date set by the badge author. If the email address a user has for TRANSIt is the same as their Open Badges email address, then they will be automatically connected and may choose to disconnect if they wish. If the email address a user has for TRANSIt is not the same, then they can add the email address which will connect them to their backpack. They can then choose to "push" to their backpack badges which they have earned on TRANSIt.

#### e-portfolio functionality

With the TRANSIt ePortfolio users can record evidence of lifelong learning – such as essays, artwork or other such things they produce that can be stored digitally. Such things are called artefacts. Each user can control which items and what information (aka artefacts) within their portfolio other users see. To facilitate this access control, all ar-

tefacts shown to other users need to be arranged into one area, which is called a page. Each user can have as many pages as they like, each with a different number of artefacts, intended purpose and audience. Audience or the people a user wishes to give access to your page, can be added as individuals or as a member of a group. It can even be made publicly available. A single page or a collection of pages can make up a user's portfolio. Unless artefacts are placed in a page, they are not visible to anybody but the user they belong to. Users can use files that they uploaded or journal entries they wrote in as many pages as they wish without any need for multiple artefact copies. For example each user could create a page for friends and family that includes holiday photos and a personal journal, a page for a tutor which includes assessments and reflective learning journal or,

a page to showcase best pieces of work and résumé for potential employers. Each TRANSIt user can create portfolio pages, create collections to bundle portfolio pages, share pages and / or collections, export their portfolio, give feedback on artefacts and pages or view their tag cloud and change tags.

#### Social networking

#### Groups

Groups can be used for collaboration among users as they offer the possibilities to discuss topics in fora, create and edit pages and collections together, share files and pages and submit pages for assessment / feedback. Groups can be created by every user, staff or administrators only.



Figure 13 Group creation page

#### Friends

A user's friends are a special group of users. A user can share portfolio pages or collections easily with them and get in touch with them quickly by going to this page. They differ from a regular group in that they do not have discussion forums, pages or shared files. If a user wishes to have access to those with their friends they have to create a regular group for them. A user can request other users' friendship by going to their profile page and click the Request friendship link or, go to the Find friends page and search for potential friends there.



Figure 14 A typical user's friend page on TRANSIt portal

# 4.2 Learning Design Use Cases: Design & Share your educational resources regarding competence development with use of the ODS Authoring Tool

### The ODS Repository

The ODS Repository is a harvester of Educational Resources, as well as a platform hosting teachers communities.

The first step has been the instantiation of a digital community on the portal of the affiliated project Open Discovery Space in the thematic area of Competence Based Learning (CBL). Multilingual sub-communities have been created for users' support in TRANSIt partner countries (EL, AU, NL, ES, FR). Here follows the list of the various multilingual TRANSIt Communities and sub-communities on Open Discovery Space portal that you might want to register in order to access and contribute your competence based learning (CBL) materials (resources, lesson plans, educational scenarios):

- [EN] Training teachers in competence based education: TRANSIt <u>http://portal.opendiscoveryspace.</u> <u>eu/beta/community/training-teachers-compe-</u> <u>tence-based-educationtransit-73929</u>
- [EL] Κατάρτιση εκπαιδευτικών στην εκπαίδευση για ανάπτυξη ικανοτήτων <u>http://portal.opendis-</u>

coveryspace.eu/beta/community/katartisi-ekpaideytikon-stin-ekpaideysi-gia-anaptyxi-ikanotiton-184334

- [AU] TRANSIt <u>Lehrer/innen in Österreich, http://</u> portal.opendiscoveryspace.eu/el/community/transit-lehrerinnen-osterreich-299877
- [EN] Training teachers in competence based education: TRANSIt in Ireland\_http://portal.opendiscoveryspace.eu/el/community/training-teachers-competence-based-educationtransit-ireland-669947
- [NL] TRANSIt: Competentiegestuurd onderwijs <u>http://portal.opendiscoveryspace.eu/beta/com-</u> <u>munity/transit-competentiegestuurd-onderwi-</u> <u>js-79281</u>
- [ES] Educación basada en competencias (proyecto TRANSIt) <u>http://portal.opendiscoveryspace.eu/el/</u> <u>community/educacion-basada-en-competencias-</u> <u>proyecto-transit-299895</u>
- [FR] TRANSIt France <u>http://portal.opendiscov-</u> eryspace.eu/el/community/transit-france-369605
- 2013 summer school, TraIning teachers in competence based education: TRANSIt @ the Crete Summer School 2013, <u>http://portal.opendiscoveryspace.eu/el/community/training-teachers-competence-based-educationtransit-crete-summerschool-2013-1167</u>
- 2014 winter school, Tralning teachers in com-

petence based education: TRANSIt @ the Vilnius Winter School 2014, <u>http://portal.opendiscov-</u> eryspace.eu/el/community/training-teachers-competence-based-educationtransit-vilnius-winterschool-2014-568584

2014 Summer School, <u>http://portal.opendis-</u> <u>coveryspace.eu/el/community/ods-summer-</u> <u>school-2014-673531</u>

Figure 15 depicts the network of multilingual TRANSIt Communities on ODS portal on the theme of competence based learning.



#### Figure 15 TRANSIt multilingual communities & sub-communities on Open Discovery Space portal regarding competence development

The user can have access to the Learning Resources developed by members of a Community, as well as the ability to upload his own educational content, lesson plans or learning scenarios promoting KCA. Login to the ODS portal, visit one of the above TRANSIt communities search the available resources or create and share your own resources.

7	Recommences of	-21	Groupe: #	1	Eveneta: 14
	Disconstants: 8	N	Addition: 1.8	ς'n	alogs: 2
llut	Puller 1		Annouries: 68		

There are three options in the menu "Search Educational Resources of the Community" by selecting the filter Type "Educational content", "Lesson Plans" and "Learning Scenarios". Each one of these options will lead you to a new page that includes all content created into this Community by all members and also provides you the possibility to create your new content.

TOS CENT	Lancester in a set france
ومعر إعداده ورائد العرب والمعارفة ومروسا العمر	Rooverse Communities Schools Progin Analysises
() Model & address that a success of the Common	C Cynam tener o tha aitenut record on in the Community
Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna	Name And And And And And And And And And And
Hand Eq. (New Yorks) (*) 1 - 10 and of the survey of	Base offices of
<ul> <li>Anno 1994 and 199</li></ul>	n angewenn fer Arle Berner ange Age on Maranel Hannes A. Henry Darmon and Angewenn sing hannes angewenn angewenn angewenn sing parameter sing terms and parameters angewenn sing angewenn angewenn angewenn angewenn begin sing
A spectra second provide second second second second second second	-

Figure 16 Searching for educational resources meeting criteria that the user specifies in the forms

The use can also share/create three types of resources; Educational Objects/resources, Lesson Plans or Educational Scenarios.

SPACE	lu lu	nkup, create, share, grow
Name 1 Well-Statistical in transitions based address	Resources Comm	ncies Schools Propie Academies
O Search educational resources of th	e Community O. Create now educat	ional resources in The Community
Step 1 Select type of Assessment + 6.4.united Class - 0.0000 March - 0.0000 March - 0.4.united Classest	Stop 2 * 200 Juthining Ted	Step 3 Conteillas
The second second	Dy Rounded Str	risacy Policy   Contact 🛛 🍋 💌 🗗

Figure 17 Creating new educational resources in the community







#### **Create Educational Content**

Figure 19 Creating/uploading an educational object

Upload your own lesson plans and/or educational scenarios



Figure 20 Creating/uploading lesson plans and/or educational scenarios

These are the three steps for uploading lesson plans and/or educational scenarios. Below these steps are analysed.

Step 1	Define the scenario / lesson plan
-	Set the languages, the title, the description and all the main information that describes your scenario and its use
Step 2	Relate it to a specific domain
	Indicate the domain / thematic area where our resource is referenced to (e.g. Science, ICT, etc.)
Step 3	Create
	Upload or edit the phases and activities of your scenario / lesson plan

Figure 21 Uploading resources in three steps



Step 1. Define your scenario / lesson plan

### Step 2 Relate your resource to a specific domain



# Step 3 Create the content of your scenario / lesson plan

There are two ways of creating the CBL scenario/lesson plan, either by uploading a pdf file or by editing each phase and activity of the scenario individually.







#### Step 3 Create the content of your scenario / lesson plan by...editing the phases & activities

Choose one of the available templates ...before decide, preview the available templates. Some of the options are:

ODS generic template:	choose this to create a lesson plan using a blank template
Your templates:	choose this to create a lesson plan based on a template that you created

In this case you can have a look at the templates suggested for promoting competence based learning, thus project based learning, storyline approach, inquiry-based learning, Guided discovery, Action learning, Problem based learning, Co-operative learning which are also available on the ODS Glossary of teaching approaches <u>http://portal.opend-iscoveryspace.eu/tr-activity/22-glossary-teaching-approaches-669764</u>

General public		Single 101mg Advand 140mg
templates	A A	Click by so to soo the
This is a blank		Click here to see the
template	Robert Re Scenario	preview of the
	Index has in every and particular manife. Added transform Add Plance & Address	template
$\sim$	Tanggigters	
	E local bridge	
Public OR	<ul> <li>Providence (antipolary)</li> </ul>	
Domain-oriented	Care philation pathways (game based sygnescit) makes a court	0
templates	<ul> <li>Produce activity</li> <li>Produce activity</li> </ul>	0
	El Rostrug annova frances frances (	
	Scenarios / lesson	Cancels the
	plans that you have	authoring process
	already created	/ exits the tool 15

Figure 22 Viewing the available templates



Figure 23 Phases and activities editing



Figure 24 Activities editing







Figure 26 Saving and viewing your scenario/lesson plan

fragmant in some of the property was the	arana	C. Darred Ad. 10. Colleges Ad.
the contract		6793
Building .		
Autority & Tilles," Econology Lanes		***
Article 2 1000 Paratour Londo		1.84.6
And State Acceleration	Select Status	180
	Do you want to save the Lapping Sciences as Torat' or as 'Yeat'.	
+	(Jane ) last	
and \$1. (married in		+*** 4 F
state a p franken state substant		07811
Panel #3. Contraction		
the Plane		
3	000	

Save the scenario / lesson plan in final or draft version.

\*\*\* only the "final' resources are accessible from the rest visitors / members of the community. The "draft" resources are only available through your profile

Figure 27 Saving your scenario/lesson plan (final, draft version)

First substitution of the state	Attach educational
10e	selecting one or
nanti ning titu Keywardh	more of the available options
and any levents such to an in (.)	
Renth.	
Number of Search Results : 0	

#### Figure 28 Attaching educational resources to your scenario/lesson plan

You can attach resources to your scenario/lesson plan with a number of options; created by you (by uploading them if you haven't done it already), or search the ODS portal using key words, search the community for resources, or add external resources adding them as files or via using the URLs.

# Download educational resources

View here all the content, material and description of the scenario / lesson plan

	Guided research nudel	
K in they	an Januaran	
Scenes, Par	thematics, Business Distless	-
		± / 14
	Phases & Activities	4
iwe s	Cognition - Knowledger: Procedural Cognition - Processo In apply Affaction: To respond and participate Psychameter: To partiers independently, skillfully and proceedy	
est i	Insuity learning, science, experimenting, alternative theories	
arts 1	Cognitivity Incury learning	/
	ik in Sart Scenz, Pa Scenz, Sa Scenz Scenz Sart Sart	Learning Scenaria Gated research model IC Is farty-heaver Denie, Auto-naise Dudies member Preses 3. Auto-thes Iness Cognitize - Knowledge: Prycedural Cognitize - Recould day: Statistical Pryceduration To patients - departmenting, shifted y and processly last

here in pdf file and in all languages

Figure 29 Downloading your scenario/lesson plan (in pdf file)

# 4.3 Learning Design Use Cases: Demonstration of designing a CBL Lesson Plan/Learning Scenario with use of the Octopus Authoring Tool

Octopus is a web-based tool for authoring learning scenarios, aligned on ODS portal and has been used in some of the TRANSIt implementation activities. Here we will present how to use it in order to author CBL Learning Scenarios. The workspace "TraIning teachers in competence based education" has been created on Octopus and can be accessed http://learn.ced.tuc.gr/octopus1/home/

#### 1. Sign-in, login and account settings

To access the tool, go to: http://learn.ced.tuc.gr/octopus. The following screenshot depicts the initial page of the tool:



Assuming you have no account in the tool, the first thing to do is to click the 'CREATE AN ACCOUNT' button on the top right of the page. A pop-up form shows up so that you could provide the necessary information for the creation of the account. Type all necessary information and click the 'Create Account!' button when you finish.

First Name *	Nektarios			
Last Name *	Moumoutzis			
Email *	neklar@ced luc.gr			
Usemame *	1 mnoumoutizs			-
Password 1				
Confirm Password	±		-	_
AM	Time(A.M. Instantal)		Chinge Phi	
Organization *	MUSIC/TUC	2		
Language *	English	~		
	* 🕐 Female 🛛 🛞 Male			
Fields counted with " war re	queinol.			

After clicking the 'Create Account!' button your account is created and your inventory of pathways is presented, which is empty at this point as shown in the following screenshot. Templates and Workspaces are empty as well.



Before exploring how you could start creating your own content in the tool, let us see how you could inspect and change your account details. Click on your name at the top-right of the Octopus page. A pop-up menu shows up. Click on the 'Account Options' item as shown in the next screenshot.

Metopus		Stational Property	
	Reference   Social Males		
10000		1444	-
Weissign			

#### 2. Creating a pathway using a template

You are now ready to create your first pathway. In Octopus terminology, a pathway stands for a pedagogical scenario or a lesson plan that prescribes how to teach a certain topic. We will see that a pathway consists of a number of learning activities that are supported by resources. Resources refer to digital content that is to be used by students during the implementation of the pathway.

#### 2.1 Join a workspace

As you have already seen in the previous section, when your account is created, your inventory of pathways is empty. One way to start creating your pathways is to join a workspace where you could find some ready-made pathways that you may modify to suit your needs. You could also find templates to use as a starting point for the creation of your pathways. Templates are essentially generic structures that contain guidance to develop your own pathway in a way that it conforms to some pedagogical approach or best practice.



So, let us see how you could join a workspace and use one of its templates to create your first scenario. Select the 'Workspaces' option on the vertical menu on the left of the Octopus main page. Then, select the tab 'All available'. You will see all the workspaces in which you could send a join request, as shown in the screenshot above. Now click the 'Join!' button.

		Example Scen	aries of ODS		MUSH
1.84	date.		Creator manager	witziw	
		•	Folowers:	1	6
tyn:			Shared Pathways:	.8	M
illes :	1.00	-	Bhared Templetes:		- 74

What has happened is that Octopus has sent a notification to the owner of the workspace, i.e. the user that has created it, that a new user, you, is requesting to join the workspace. The owner of the workspace can approve or reject your request.



In the screenshot on the left you can see what is happening on the owner's side. When he/she browses his/her workspaces, he/she can see that there are pending requests in the 'Example Scenarios of ODS' workspace. The number of pending requests is marked with green color.

The owner can click on this number and see a list of the pending requests from which he/she could approve or reject each one of the requests. You could see how the list of pending requests is presented in the screenshot on the right. The pending requests are shown in tabular form. Each row corresponds to one request and the owner of the work-space can accept or reject it by clicking on the corresponding button.

Let us now go back to your own account. After the owner of the workspace has approved your request, you are now offered with the option to 'View Workspace contents' as shown below. Click that button.



You are now able to see the Pathways shared through the workspace "Training teachers in competence based education" as shown below.



Click on the tab 'Templates'. You can have a look at the available templates for fostering competences adapted for TRANSIt purposes (Project based learning, Guided research, Guided educational pathway, The 5e Instructional Model).



#### 2.2 Creating a new pathway from an existing template

You are now able to see the available templates in the 'Example Scenarios of ODS' workspace. There is only one template available, which is essentially based on the actual template that the ODS project has elaborated to enable the creation of scenarios in a general way that could accommodate any pedagogical approach. Let us use this template to develop a new scenario. We will use the material for the scenario presented in Annex B entitled 'The Design Challenge'. Of course, you are free to work out your own scenario when following this guide.

To start creating the new pathway using the ODS template, click on the small button marked with a small arrowhead pointing downwards, on the right of the template title, to show the pop-up menu depicted in the screenshot below. Select the 'Use this Template' item on the pop-up menu.

Patricia	My Workspaces Participating All available Example Scenarios et GUS -
	Pathways Templates
Tertşäites	(F. F. Page 1) aft (F. H. 2)
	Desrad as PDP

A new pathway is created and the page for editing this new pathway is presented as shown in the screenshot below. On the left side of the page you can see a graphical representation of the hierarchical structure of the pathway (its phases, depicted as red-bulleted items, its composite activities depicted as green-bulleted items and its learning activities depicted as yellow-bulleted items. On the 'info' pane on the middle of the page you can see the title and the description of the selected item in the hierarchy on the left. You are now able to edit this information presented on the 'info' pane.

and the second sec						
	-					
	and the second second					
a little une (he distance of the Co	A Printer of Land	the and				
Charlenge have alked	Castaire					
Can at companie strateli		Here There are the server in the thread in the time of the server				
· D / to dramatic berry alread	14 A & B - P. S	· ···································				
Contraction and a second secon	Contract of Second					
Contraction second state	This is not The initials					
	Will load given in you on	All least gives in real-color contraganesis on merculation for the secondarisation of pairs express (pathway). Free rest and pairs been plan unitaries.				
	Test groot subject and	a na haad na haadaata ( . ) saken kelagat yaa are naga-fati ya prosine. Rejinan waxaan	d tool with			
	(Sharit description) and starting points of the b of the leastst series, (	n idea: Castrille what the Mudant struct do naming the baseds. Address the following a most seried, goal clubs of the basens, and probate capacited from the student; during	and at the real			
	Lise the exercise here	ruhual structure to passivite the learning autorities of the events of by editing the propriet	al tree or the			
	financial finderson of					
	General Informat	CON .				
	the in the radius inclusion	and the restants providing provide othersphere along the providence				
	Binimut.	Waters				
	Autorited	[Author's name and sistails]				
		found as recovery to provide the same and policity of all				
		the authors of the approaches				
	Louis New Yorks	Proceedings of the community				
	Contraining Streets	the applices of the approximate, [Second-dignet shall approximate] Expended a transmission is an arrival that net of the invasion strains, and attractions also affects allowed as gain a during the reserved.				
	Converse provide	the auditory of the extension. <b>Demonstration of the extension of the second states of the s</b>				
	Louring pub	The address of the constraints. <b>Brownings the first attention</b> Repeated and the measure the second shared of the derivative exists, and attention when the address of the derivative the generating and of the traces events and the tradicities the generating and of the traces events and the tradicities the generating and the derivative events and the tradicities interviews append on the tracement of the descences addresses. The gas and the dependent targets even addresses and the dependent terms and a second addresses.				

#### 2.3 Editing the new pathway

To start with, let us change the title of the new pathway. Be sure that the item representing the whole pathway is selected on the tree view on the left. Then, click on the Title field and change the title to "THE DESIGN CHALLENGE". Notice that the tree view on the left changes to show the new pathway title.



Now, go on to change the description under the title field. The description field supports a simple WYSIWYG editor that allows you to create tables, format the text you enter, change the paragraph justification, and create bulleted or numbered lists and many more. In the following screenshot you can see how the description has been changed to present general information and the learning context within which THE DESIGN CHALLENG SCENARIO is to be implemented.

tang Street at				
1 4 4 B 100		100		
su hebeles coupled	ie Trut	In a bearing the second second		
+ Q The states state	101	Long the		
· The statute we manifold.	All and a start		States	
· D (The diamond backs) a lots		XINDARMONT	Z A 4 - 0 - 0 - 0	
😺 ("No of sample instruction activity"		(1)日田(月前天市)	TO MERCIAN IS A STREET	
Contraction of the second second				
		General Inform	nation	
		o circi di silioriti		
		Filment	Pater	
		Addrefal.	Munite for some (1002), And Lannamer (1211)	
		lasting pull-	Applicable increasing of the light present that are network, for printing of the strange mediatry of	
			These addressing of realizers perpending on an other creates and har- tened brokens, but functions and estimations of the system components,	
			Benchlander of Advances includes including contrast, and other experiments of a second sec	
		Lawrence and when	A Generator	
			1 Secondation	
			4 Test ga and meets	
			<ul> <li>A distribution and extended.</li> </ul>	
			A framework	
		Gammer a dashalar	Percent and gette	
		Teoretical Tenuesees	Greek) 46	
			Stagewate associate constantial large for constituting disciplination and the second model of the second model and the second model for the second model	
		Learning Conte	ext	

Let us see now how you could change the icon of the pathway. To do this, you first have to click on the 'Change Photo' button as shown in the screenshot below:

and and a second se			
	-		
Contraction of the local sector of the local s	The second se		
Createrspecial		These is thereased in the factory if had been in	
+2	<b>ELGBRIS</b>	10 A 4 4 1 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 4	
Soft of state and state	CERTIFICATION AND A	11140-24x405-0404	
	There Inform	ation	
	Animat	-	
	derect (c)	the fig. score (187) induced (199)	
	107103-000	And the process of further because had an ensure hit think or the despectations.	
		have the first of the second s	
		interview of a sector prime in which and the prime in the sector prime in the sector prime in the sector prime is the sector prime in the sector prime is the sector prime in the sector prime is the sector p	
	carried spectra	2 - Drawnine	
		1 may we can	
		A Augustanianan	
		L Russing	
	Louise processes.	Ameri ac pite.	
	Terring Advance	the second second second second	
		Notice is apply to the investment of constructing frequency or contact, there are a comparison and areas for contact photops and the or pro- tion of the second second second frequency and the second second second second second frequency. The photops for an experimental second second second second second second frequency and the second second second second second second second second frequency and second second second second second second second frequency and second second second second second second frequency and second second second second second second frequency and second second second second second second second frequency and second second second second second second second frequency and second second second second second second second second frequency and second seco	
	Learning Conte	at	
	And in case of the local division of the loc	test Control of Contro	
	that and a terror down on	#1075 - wa-	3

Then, a file dialogue opens (see next screenshot) so that you could browse on your local drive and locate an image to be used as your pathway's icon. Select the desired image and click 'Open'. After selecting the image you want; you can see it in your pathway as shown below. You can change it again whenever you want.

#### 2.4 Editing the learning activities of a pathway

Having finished with the information that refer to the new pathway as a whole, we are now ready to describe how the pathway is to be implemented in terms of the specific learning activities to be done by students. Our example scenario consists of six learning activities as described in Annex B of this document:

- 1. Orientation
- 2. Conceptualization
- 3. Design and create
- 4. Experimentation
- 5. Evaluation and reflection
- 6. Reporting

All these activities are simple activities without further structure underneath. Consequently, we would first delete the structures offered by the ODS template that are intended for the description of composite activities. This is shown in the screenshot below: First right-click on the phase that contains the composite activity (green-bulleted item) and then select 'Delete' in the pop-up menu.

Sciopus		Tand mean to easthing designed to same	Sutheres Hours
100			
Pathway Brastan C	344		
😳 🤪 🙂 🙂 🛛 🗤	Title		
# 100 THE EXISTING TO HELE INFOR	(Thie of consolide phonon)		
Concerning and the second seco	Click 'Delete' to delete the selected structure	Perspect   foot facety = foot face = ± ⊕ = ≤ (A + 2) = = ± ⊕ = ≤ (A + 2) = = ± ⊕ = ≤ (A + 2) =	
Right-click here to show the pop up menu			

Click yes in the confirmation dialog box that appears next:



You should see a structure like the one depicted in the following screenshot:

Mopus				9	delivery from	
(SA)						
fating Press	And Descent 1.					
0.012 20	Title.					
· SA THE STREET PARTY AND	(The of small bearing	a-9-%/				
a Quidenegarante	franke.					
Concernance and	B & g = E E E E E type, 1 August 1 Auf Late					
	244390	A TO LET TEL HARD	12-AD-0-B # 0			
	10000		-384-82-1044			
	this to see the last	estare.				
	in the grant raise	in the second	a memory by the binary set of your strengt	( partness), from our and alars and from and		
	0.010					
	These proves on Manual	and some set in the	space ( ) Dispace on Latest Look was submerical an basis	on Autom burneted but will past when they	- 1 I I	
	Desiription Des	othe what the shales	ta afronta de les Bes fan ting activity (tant faint) ar	of two interest includes which if he performed containing	(m)	
	Tast type: ]]					
	Per/Press					
	time the following	sold by nearthy the	adjuster for their low and becoming a resident to your	prevents to partition the the source description (	-	
		10111	Contract of the second s			
		Tere	And and a second s			
	. Asseption	Lowest	Exercise			
		Baading	Cline restrict			
			PLOTECH Parking			
			Tuing whe			
			Sight of a second second second			
	and an an an an	distants	the second secon			
	- manying .	CHARGE	Contrast			
		Longer 14	manage ange			
		Plantered in a	Deserve			
		Digaring 1	THE R. L.			
		-	most wanting			
					1.0	
	Vacana and	1.000	Providence -		- F	
	Per p				- A.	

Now we are ready to create the six learning activities in our scenario. To facilitate our work we would first copy the one learning activity of the scenario so that we have six learning activities and then start editing each one of them. To copy a learning activity, you right-click on it on the tree view on the left and you select 'Copy' in the pop-up menu.



Then you could right-click wherever you want to paste it and select the 'Paste' option on the pop-up menu as shown in the next screenshot.



After repeating five times the above copy-paste process, you will have a structure like the one depicted in the following screenshot: Now, you could start editing one-by-one the learning activities. First you enter the title of the first learning activity (Orientation):



Then, you provide a description for this learning activity as shown in the following screenshot:

Constrained of the second	Popus			S hiters the
Image: Section of the section of t				
Image: Source interment of the source	from Parcel			
Market (Mark Construction)       Image: Construction (Mark Construction)     Image: Construction (Mark Construction)       Image: Construction (Mark Construction)     Image: Construction)       Image: Construction (Mark Construction)     Image: Construction)       Image: Con		104		
Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)         Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)         Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)         Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)         Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)         Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)         Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)         Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)         Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)         Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)         Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)         Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)         Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)         Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)         Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)         Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)         Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)       Image: Section 2014 (Section 2014)	Contraction president	(Personal Person		
Contract output to the service of the service output to the	<ul> <li>Classification access activation</li> <li>Classification access activation</li> <li>Classification access activation</li> </ul>	****		
Var dielek innen in var prinze prinze genome kannen einen reihen sogene skuling einen teine pri kein. Kulien eine bekannen einen skulien.       Keine in Stronge Versing (Versing dell)       Keine in Stronge Versing (Versing dell)       Var dielek innen einen skulien.       Versing Versing (Versing dell)       Versing Versing Versing (Versing dell)       Versing	Contractor and a second	the second data	and a second	a large & to part to be off a fifth task.
Advisor         Mask           Lineary With the state of the sta		fan ten jen fan ten jen fan ten jen	nan tau wan ku Ana Julang aman, gung anang, ang yulan, pang yulan, pang anang ang ang ang palanin. Di ang taunang (tauna ang) ang taunang (tauna ang) ang taunang (tauna ang)	dere de las quertes en passi sense.
Laming         Malency setures and Algore field is also any or any or the darper           Bandwidth         Malency setures and algore field is also any or any or the darper           Bandwidth         Malency setures and algore field is also any or any or the darper           Bandwidth         Malency setures and algore field is also any or any or the darper           Bandwidth         Malency setures and algore field is also any or any or the darper setures any or an		Restored.	teres in the second	
Annular bio Andrea Santa Santa Sa Santa Santa S		internet.	Solars unseen with four studia terms and in star (	
Nas.     variance cmits_critication       Drivers.     Total       Drivers.     0-01       Databater     0.01			Part for	
and at		Test.	regiment (100, 2018).00 Arlann: Tan, Ange, and a spin class, Regulator allane.	
Autor 110		-	***	
		tetter.	10 M	

You continue with the second learning activity (Conceptualization):

Ropus		And an interval to a strength of the strength	Santaria Barr				
C2							
Advention of	-	-					
Dian B	Tie						
+ BI TEDENOLONIANIE	Constatute						
+ 🖨 Literary annual	Texaster						
Constant of the	8/20	W. W. W. W. States					
Caller of states in only 1 where	1 432	AUDINESS AND ADDRESS ADDRESS					
The shorest element of the ball	4	CHILDREN - 2 JAX XII - HILBRY D					
Class is represented rought	The business	The Residence of the Residence Residence Residence of the matrix of the second se					
	Tes ton 75eb	why former (the earning)					
	Tana Tajan (Develop) Tantongan (Developmentag)						
	This for proving lenters planning						
	The set	Tene :					
	Married,	<ul> <li>Beakers (compared (Free)) document antidate and they like (an initial)</li> <li>Beakers private to assume hyperbolic</li> </ul>					
	literature b perce	Meanston, Collision on and anno Name Long ander ging perception					
	Fare	Manian Sonada Salkaro: Nololida ultuan, non regara salkaro					
	harrow	Approxime, buil					
	Existen	ça in					

You continue with the rest of the learning activities and finally you have all six learning activities:

#topus		(bid my bid attack instant)		Santa da Barra
Patras Basist a	Mar New			
and a los	784			
+ BATHERSONDHEADING	niseme			
	Districtor.			
Charlester		B B B B Store		
Coupling of crist	14110	2)用标准图用单用件		
Consideration and colorise		PL-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1	1	
Contracting .	Diam're art se	of it get to surrow of their anterestments and private a privateous is the deal	and the learther	
	Set yes the	serving/Techniges (1998)		
	Watter Street	1997 - 18		
	and the second s	1 per		
	all and the second	Tradedo ao campaigne fan Parings. Tradedo ao propiet Berl Ferrings is that them		
	description &	Energian Salah and Land prop. Standard in case base Rates Sing model (prop.)etc.)and		
	Start .	National contactor projector		
	*	Lativani, Prozitizina antoini		
	Second Second			
	Deater	18.5		
	1000 C	11		

#### 2.5 Enriching learning activities with resources

Now, it's time to see how you could enrich the learning activities of your scenario with resources, i.e. digital content that could be used during their implementation by the students. Let us assume that you want to enrich the second learning activity with a new resource. Select the learning activity by clicking on its node in the tree view on the left. Then select the 'Resources' tab on the main page pane. Initially you could see a list of resources that have been defined in the template, as examples. Delete them one-by-one by clicking on the red X's.


Each time, you have to confirm you delete action by clicking 'Yes' on the corresponding dialogue box:



After deleting all the irrelevant resources, press the 'New' blue button and select the 'Add Link' option in the menu that shows up. We assume here that the resource that we will attach to the "Conceptualization" learning activity is a web page. In case you want to upload a file from your local drive or find digital content from external sources (Europeana, YouTube), you just have to select the corresponding options in the menu.

Matu		<b>9</b>
<u>C9</u>		
Mana Salahan di Cara Salahan Pangana Salahan Pangan Pangan Pangana Salahan Pangana Salahan Pangana Sal	2	

Assuming that you selected to add a link, the next dialogue box prompts you to provide the link that points to the resource you want to add in the learning activity:

Edit Link				×
	Link:	http://www.scy-net.eu/web/guest/scymapper		
			OK	Cancel

Give the link and click 'OK. A new dialogue box shows up so that you could provide more information about the resource like its title, the time needed for students to consume the resource and a textual description:

After you finish editing this information, click 'Save'. You are able now to see that the new resource has been added in the list of the resources for the selected learning activity. Furthermore, a preview of the resource is shown in the main pane of the page. Following the same process, you could enrich your pathway with all the resources that are necessary for the implementation of each one of its learning activities. In the following sections we will see that it is also possible to enrich with resources pathways that are created by other Octopus users. Finally, you may share your own pathways within a Workspace and enable other users to enrich them with resources.

# 3. Reusing parts of a pathway

Octopus supports drag-and-drop reorganization and reuse of activities and activity structures. Within a pathway you could drag the node to be moved and drop it at the point you want to paste it. You could also copy/paste nodes within a pathway. This can be done with the pop-up menu shown when right-clicking on a node.

To reuse nodes from other pathways (or templates) you have to open the "Copy structure" pane, find the scenario containing the structure to be copied and then drag-and-drop it to the desired location or copy/paste it. This process is demonstrated in the following screenshots:



# 3.1 Copy/paste within the same scenario

To copy an activity, you first right-click on it and the pop-up menu shows up. Then select the menu item "Copy". Then we right-click on the node where we want to paste the copied activity and select "Paste" in the pop up menu.



The structure is copied in the new position:



# 3.2 Drag & drop within the same scenario

First we select a learning activity within a pathway and start dragging it.

Retopus	
Patheny Structure	lefu
G G G O Ine	Title:
Base of the second	Learning process
Learn () Activity Structure Activity X Dearb	
	Revigete the underlying

Then we drop it to the desired location:



The new structure of the pathway contains the activity moved to the new position:

Metopus		
Pathway Structure	Me. Reserves	
Q Q Q 0 3rm	Title	
* 10 O'TETE and Seven of Australia * O Learning process Descring process Learning and a seven of a seven of the Learning of the seven of the sev	Learn to dearge in 30 and write Description In X (2) we III III III III A (2) All III III III	

# 3.3 Reusing activities and activity structures from other scenarios / templates

Finally, let us see how structures from other pathways/templates could be reused in the scenario that we are editing: First open the "Copy Structure" pane, find a scenario/template to copy from and then select the structure to drag to the initial pathway:

Press this but "copy structure	on to show the 17 pane	en siare re e parses person (1)
Puttersy Stration	ate	
Q Q Q 0	TRe.	
See 20 protecting as a stream of herming a .  • Other termine process  • Other termine process  • Other termine outputs the stream of a .  • Other termine outputs and other .  • I easily to being a .20 and write .	Lawring present Does Cupy treatment Does Cupy treatment Put in this field yet and provide the option arrived find a scenario/te and provide the option arrived the option and provide the option arrived the option arrived the option option arrived arrived the option arrived the option option arrived arrived the option arrived the option option arrived	e to your scenario

Drop at the node of your scenario where the structure should be placed.

Ropus		(the same set a particular (second state)
Autory Master and A	are automp proces	
Active to the state of the second state of the	piece Capp Desenant piece Cap	
	Image: static integration - then of the integration strategy      Image: static integration - then of the integration strategy        Image: static integration - the of the integration strategy      Image: static integration strategy        Image: static integration - the of the integration strategy      Image: static integration - the of the integration strategy        Image: static integration - the of the integration - the of the integration of the integration strategy      Image: static integration - the of the integration - the of the integration	ALC: N

Finally, the new node is shown in your pathway:

Actopus		Data association per	i.
(max)			
Pathway Diruches	1 ( befs Response		
G	TDs		
· Sa 30 perting as a means of women	Title of simple learning activity2		
Here is the new no	Copy Structure  Copy Str	н	* 11
of the scenario	All i implies of surgests places (Dec of surgests places) implies of surgests places (Dec of surgests places) (Dec of surgest basining activity(2) (Dec of surgest bactivity(2) (Dec of surgest basinity(2) (Dec of su		f ye ent (ta c)

# 3.4 Copy/paste parts of another pathway

Use the "Copy structure" pane to copy a node and paste it in the pathway you are editing just like you paste structure from the same pathway (see description of copy 4. Access rights to scenarios /paste within the same pathway).

# 4. Creation and management of workspaces

As already presented, a workspace in Octopus offers a way of sharing pathways and templates among a group of users, the members of the workspace. All Octopus users are able to join other workspaces or even create and manage their own workspaces. Workspaces are distinguished into public and private ones. Public workspaces are visible to all Octopus users so that they can send a join request. Private workspaces are visible only to their members. The only way to join a private workspace is through the workspace owner which is able to add and remove members to the workspace. As soon as the owner of the workspace adds a user to it, the user is able to see the workspace and its contents through the Workspace view of his/her personal page. Let us see now in more detail how you could create a workspace and how you could manage its members and contents.

# 4.1 Creation of a workspace

Let us assume that you have created a number of pathways that you want to share with other users through a workspace. The following screenshot depicts your Pathway view with four pathways already created.



The first thing you have to do to create the new workspace is go to the Workspaces view by clicking on the corresponding item in the views' list on the left of your personal page. Then, click the 'New Workspace' button as shown in the screenshot below.



After clicking the 'New Workspace' button, a dialogue box shows up and prompts you to provide the necessary information in order to create the new workspace. In the screenshot below you may see this dialogue box filled with information including the new workspace name, its description and icon. Let us assume that in this workspace you want to share pedagogical scenarios and lesson plans that refer to Open Discovery Space pilot activities in Greece. A workspace could be 'Open' to any user to view its contents and request to join, or 'Private', i.e. accessible only by its creator. The default option is 'Open' which is the option we want in our example so that every user is able to join.

Workspace Name:		DIEN OPEN
ODS Pilots in Greece		SPACE SPACE
Description:		PILOT SCHOOLS
This workspace gathers scenarios and lesson Greece.	plans that refer to ODS pilot activities in	
		Change Plioto
Privacy © Open Anyone can see the group and may access © Private Only Creator may access it.	it after request.	
	Click 'Save changes' to	- Care dance

After you provide all the necessary information, click 'Save changes' to store the information for the new workspace and then 'Close' to close the dialogue box. The workspace has been created and you can see it represented as a box within your workspace under the 'My Workspaces' tab of the Workspaces view of your personal page as depicted below.



77

# 4.2. Approve requests of users to join your workspace

Being an 'Open' your newly created workspace is visible to all users so that they can request to join it. After sending a request to join, you are, as the creator of the workspace, able to review the pending requests and approve or reject them. For a description of this process please refer to section 2.1 of this user guide. In that section we have guided you through the process of requesting to join a workspace in order to be able to use a template for creating your first pathway. We have seen how the creator of that workspace was able to review and approve your request. Now, having created your own workspace, you are the one who manages the join requests of other users.

# 4.3. Adding/Browsing templates and pathways to a workspace

Let us see now how you could share your pathways within the new workspace you have created. Switch to the Pathways view in your personal page as shown below. Using the drop down menu of a pathway you may select to share it with a workspace (see below).

Fropus		These such the state state of the state		Soldare to Baser
Patheone Internet Victoria	In refractions	Click the down arrow Elect the Share opti- click With a W when all the star arrow of the Share opti- click With a W when all the star wr or of the Share been all the star been a	In and then. In also courses () In also cour	The Factoremport Restorem
	The Baser of Life Africa, Statement (22) on 12 (1).			

You may select one or more workspaces with which to share your pathway as shown below. In the dialog box you can see a list of the workspaces. Click on the 'Share with' button to share the selected pathway with a specific workspace.



As soon as you select a workspace to share your pathway the corresponding 'Share with' button changes to 'Stop sharing' to offer to you the capability to stop sharing the pathway in that workspace, if you want:

Workspaces List	
tite:	A 🍡
10 1 Page 1 W1 P 11 2	Dissioping 1 - 9 of 9
Share with	Sherenti û
Example Scenarios of DOS	MUSSC/TUC Share with
hituri Control Europe Sherr with	Click this Step Sharing
the state of the s	1 Contract of the second secon
The second second second second second	Come

Follow the previous steps for all the pathways that you want to share through the new workspace. After you finish, go back to the Workspaces view of your personal page and click on the 'View Workspace contents' button that corresponds to the new workspace as shown below:



As soon as you click that button, a new tab is created within the Workspace view that represents the new workspace and the pathways shared through this workspace is shown. If you share templates as well, you may see them at the 'Templates' tab. The process is exactly the same as it is for Pathways; the only difference is that you have to go the Templates view of your personal page to find the templates that you want to share.



#### 5. Exploiting workspaces to share pathways and enable other users to enrich them with resources

Through workspaces, it is possible to share pathways with other users so that non-owners of pathways are able to view them and enrich them with resources attached to their learning activities. When accessing a workspace, a user is able to select a pathway to view as shown in the screenshot below:

Patriais	NyWorkspaces   Portcasting   AT available Pathways   Templetics	1005 Places in Granes =	Click this button to show the d	rop down menu
Workspaces	Di La andre angland fais Di La angland fais Castad for molores Castad for molores Castad for molores Castad for molores Castad for molores Castad for molores	Sti prefere as a mean of learney as. Oversid by resursation Learning 2012 (+ 30 15	Aurite Tares	Beek Traps Control to recommendate Last Noc 2013-6604 LD
	THE DESIGN COALLINGS (# Design for intervention Line Councils (0)	The flucture gradients Spectrum (* Destant by recovered as user read 2013-6694 12.	Remost from Goale The Roor of Life (a) Control by meanworking Control by Mail (01)-doi-14 all	

By selecting to view a shared pathway, you are able to see its contents without changing them. You may, however, enrich the learning activities of the viewed pathway with additional resources. Let us see how. The screenshot below shows how the previously selected pathway is presented in view mode.



To start enriching its learning activities with additional resources, first select the activity you want to enrich and then go to the 'Resources' tab of this activity and press the 'Add Resource' button as shown in the screenshot below.



As soon as you click this button a drop down menu shows up with a list of the various options you have: You may upload a file from your local storage, add a link in the web of find a resource in various repositories and external content sites such as Europeana, Natural Europe repository, ODS repository, SlideShare or YouTube. Let us assume that you want to find a resource from the ODS repository. Click on 'Find resources ODS'.



A pop up dialogue box shows up where you can give your search keywords and the results that satisfy them are presented. Browse on the list of the resources shown and click the 'Add resource' button to add the desired resource(s) in the learning activity you are working on. When you finish, click the 'Close' button.



Now you should be able to see the new resource listed within the selected learning activity. To view the resource in the central view pane, click on its title.



You may proceed this way to add more resources or select another learning activity to enrich.

# 6. Shared editing of pathways

Sharing pathways through workspaces enables other users to view and enrich them with resources. There are cases, however, when you want to collaborate with other users to edit a specific pathway. In such a case, you are able to select the users that you want to have editing access to your pathways. First you go to your Personal Page using the drop down menu available through the button at the upper right part of Octopus labeled with your name. In your personal page you could browse your pathways, your templates and your workspaces. The pathways view is selected when you go to your personal page. Identify the pathway you want to share and click on the small circular button showing a downward arrowhead. A drop down menu is shown as depicted in the following screenshot.



A pop-up window shows up (see screenshot on the right) where you may browse through the set of users. To share the pathway with a specific user, just click on 'Share with' button inside the box representing the user. As soon you click on this button, the user is able to edit your pathway. The button changes to 'Stop sharing'. In case you want to terminate sharing of your pathway with another user, you just click on the 'Stop sharing' button inside the box representing that user.



The list of pathways that have been shared for editing with you are shown in your Personal Page, at the Pathways view under the table 'Shared Editing' next to the 'My Pathways' tab.



# **Exemplary Practice**

С

Practice that typifies high quality learning is provided for instructors and teachers to act as a guide. This practice serves for teachers and instructors to follow in their own professionalism as well as acting as a template for the development of further scenarios and frameworks.

### 5.1 Framework

The training framework contains self-contained learning modules. These could be used in the form of a:

A. Online course, where trainee uses them independently in their own space

B. Face to face workshop/course

C. Blended learning course

- A eLearning Online Courses To use existing training platforms and digital communities on the theme of CBL
- B Face to face workshops
  1. Teachers, head teachers, teacher trainers
  (different schools, colleagues-same school)
  2. teachers and pupils

Blended learning course Combining online resources with face to face workshops

It is possible to use the pre-existing online course, but also teachers or ICT staff could also select specific learning modules and design their own training. The organisation of the training is up to the schools teachers or ICT administration staff, which would like to learn the specific topic by themselves or teach it to other teachers or ICT staff.

# 5.2 Phases of Implementation Activities

With an aim to evaluate the produced e-learning content and the Project's training portal lot training sessions have been organised and outcomes have been assessed. More specifically, the following activities have been implemented according with the timeframe set: a) implement and evaluate the first round of training activities with the participants (Phase A). b) implement and evaluate the second round of training activities with the participants (Phase B) and c) organise validation events in each country.

Timeframe	Implementation/validation activity
September – December 2014	Validation Pilot Trials – Phase A
February – June 2014	Training activities – Phase B
July – September 2014	Validation Activities/Events – Phase C
September–November 2014	Validation Final Phase

Figure 30 Timetable of implementation and validation activities

During the first phase of the project activities, a first group of teachers was involved in a series of training activities (conventional seminars and on-line training sessions). The piloting included School-centered work (optionally) when teachers had the chance to implement teaching activities and suggested strategies in their own classrooms. In this way it was possible to investigate the initial impact of the TRANSIt-provided training in real life/school contexts. After collecting feedback, the training approach was revisited. Then, a second group of teachers (a larger scale than Phase A in most cases) will attend a second cycle of training activities. To further validate the project's approach and maximise the potential uptake and impact in each country, a series of national validation events have been implemented. Moreover, teacher contests have been implemented and teachers will have the chance to attend summer schools with no cost and get rewarded for their work, since teachers who are already implementing innovative practices are potential change agents.

Overall 154 teachers participated at the first round of implementation activities (only t to the face to face events), met the project aims, training framework and methodology, used the pilot TRANSIt modules, the TRANSIt virtual environment with its aligned tools (Mahara), and the respective communities created on ODS Portal. Overall 274 teachers and 21 students participated at the second phase of the training in the face to face workshops using the TRANSIt modules, portal and the respective communities created on ODS Portal. Except from the participants in the face to face workshops there has been a considerable amount of stakeholders that has been reached through and participated only in online activities. This has been possible with the creation and support of online communities, as well as the uploading of the training materials online and the conduction of online training activities (webinars). Moreover, a considerable number of participants has been involved in the three international activities, such as the 5 days summer and winter courses.

#### 5.3 Implementation Examples

Here some examples of the activities implemented in partner countries are presented that could act as examples for further implementation activities. The modules and training materials used have been localized in order to fit the particular context and needs. All materials used as well as the resources created by participants are available online.

Activities implemented in the context of pilots in Greece In the case of Greece the programme has been designed following a blended learning approach, including work on the TRANSIt virtual learning environment supported with face-to-face training workshops, on line webinars and school implementation. An additional workshop was organised in Crete in collaboration with the regional educational policy makers. More specifically some of implemented activities:

- Webinar: "Team formation, evaluation and ICT integration in project based learning". The first webinar acted as an introductory session prior to the face to face workshops. Participants had the possibility to pose questions while attending the webinar and comment. The webinar recording has currently around 1,500 Views also an indicator about its high relevance to teachers from Greece.
- Webinar: "I will facilitate a project this year, what do I need to know about it?", <u>https://www.youtube.</u> <u>com/watch?v=LGD\_AtBXnxM</u>

- Workshop 1: "Design of cross-curricular activities with an aim to foster competences"
- Webinar: "Authentic evaluation: Use of ePortfolio tools in projects", <u>https://www.youtube.com/</u> watch?v=UhfJAyOx7Xc
- Workshop 2: "e-portfolio use in project based learning"

Further aim has been the creation of an online community of interested education stakeholders that would have the chance to exchange teaching practices and educational materials focused on competence based learning in a dedicated community on ODS portal, therefore such a community has been developed on ODS.



EI ODS Webinar 6: Evaluation and ICT Integration in Project Based Learning

Figure 31. Webinar "Evaluation and ICT integration in project based learning" recording on YouTube (<u>https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=cqzesbcq4f8</u>), ~1500 views



Figure 32. Webinar "I will facilitate a project this year, what do I need to know about it?" recording on YouTube (<u>ht-tps://www.youtube.com/watch?v=LGD\_AtBXnxM</u>). ~900 views



Figure 33. Webinar "Authentic evaluation: Use of ePortfolio tools in projects?" recording on YouTube (https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=UhfJAyOx7Xc)

Here follows indicative description of activities implemented during face to face **workshops organised**.

# Aims:

- Presenting the TRANSIt project (aims, milestones of the project)
- Presenting some Best Practices produced by participants in previous pilots and discussing strategies to plan and assess competence based interdisciplinary activities
- Introducing the TRANSIt Greek Community on ODS
- Presenting the status of development of the TRAN-SIt training environment (Moodle- Mahara integration) http://transit.cti.gr/moodle/,
- Collecting feedback and input from participants.

#### Procedure

As a starting point, each participant has been invited to come to the course with an idea, or maybe an example of existing practice, called 'initial ideas'. These ideas have been uploaded as Educational Objects <u>http://portal.opendiscoveryspace.eu/el/educational-objects/1167</u>. These ideas related somehow to using cross-curricular approaches fostering competences in learning and education. During the workshop they had the chance to work individually and/or in small teams in order to upload their learning scenarios. Educational scenarios were based on an adaptation of the ODS project-based template with emphasis on fostering & assessment of students' competences, as well as developed from scratch

(with use of the Generic Template). Scenarios are crosscurricular and competence based most of which apply to Social Sciences, Philosophy, History (moreover regional one), Arts and a combination of other subject fields such as ICT & Biology.

TRANSIt promotes the use of authentic means of assessment. Mahara has been chosen as ePortfolio tool, as it has been included in the Level B "Teachers' Training in the Use and the Exploitation of ICT in the Educational Teaching Process" offered by the Ministry of Education in Greece. Mahara has been used in two levels in the context of the pilot training (for teacher training & in -classroom use by trainees with their students). More specifically: after a short demonstration participants used the credentials created by the TRANSIt team beforehand in order to login on TRANSIt Mahara http://transit.cti.gr/ mahara/ and created/ updated their profile uploading files, and uploading on their journal. Then they had the chance to create groups, invite friends & become members of groups. After trainees created pages, as well as a collection and experienced the Social functionalities of the tool sharing pages & collections, comment and accept comments by others (Figure 35). The example (case studies) of B-level ICT training (Ministry of Education) regarding the e-portfolios use has been presented and discussed with the participants. Finally, discussion between participants took place on how Mahara could be exploited in projects/cross-curricular activities in their classroom with their students.



Figure 34 Screenshot from the TRANSIt Mahara Activities covered in the workshop (<u>http://transit.cti.gr/mahara/view/view.php?id=108</u>)

Activity	Description	Duration (min)
Introduction -	Mahara- What is it? - Basic Features -	15'
Presentation	Navigation	
Activity 1	Mahara Dashboard	20'
_	Profile - Profile pictures	
	5' demo, 15' trainees update their profile	
	upload files, and upload on their journal	
Activity 2	Groups, Invite Friends, accept friends	35'
	5' tutoring, 25' trainees create groups, invite	
	friends & become members of groups	
Break		15'
Activity 3	Portfolio – Page creation -	25'
	demo 5', 20' trainees create 3 pages	
Activity 4	Portfolio - Creating a collection	20'
	5' demo - 20' trainees create a collection	
Activity 5	(Social functionalities) pages & collections	25'
_	sharing, messages, comments	
	5' demo, 20' trainees share a page,	
	comment and accept comments by others	
Break		15'
Presentation	e-portfolios Use: the example of B-level ICT	15'
	training (Ministry of Education)	
Discussion	Mahara exploitation in projects - Discussion	30'

Figure 35 Workshop Agenda 'e-portfolio use in project based learning'



Figure 36 Teachers engaged in a guided discussion during the final face-to-face session

#### **TRANSIt** course in Spain

The TRANSIt course in Spain aimed to increase teachers' knowledge, skills and attitudes in fostering the transversal competencies of their students. It was organised in four parts as stated below.

## 1st session (25th of April 2014)

The first session of the TRANSIt training at the University of Barcelona took place on Friday, 25th of April 2014 from 18:00 to 20:00h. The session started with an introduction to TRANSIt goals, consortium, and the training framework.

Then, we presented the proposed training approach, i.e. how to foster student transversal key competencies using inquiry-based learning. One of the challenges that have been mentioned for the change towards a competency-based model of teaching and learning in Spain is the relation between competencies and traditional school subjects. There are transversal competencies that can be directly associated with the traditional subjects: linguistic competency and mathematical competency, for instance. Other competencies can be related to several school subjects. For instance, cultural and artistic competency is related to history, but also to music. Last, there are a set of transversal competencies which can't be associated to any subject, i.e. sense of initiative and entrepreneurship, learning to learn and digital competency. They have been called metadisciplinary and it

has been argued that fostering them is especially challenging (Zabala, 2011).

Inquiry-based learning is a suitable methodology to foster the so called metadisciplinary transversal competencies. In an inquiry-based learning activity, students carry out a research in order to answer to a testable guestion with support from the teacher. Along this process, students work often in a cooperative way and using ICT tools. An inquiry-based learning scenario fosters "sense of initiative and entrepreneurship" competency because it is a student-driven learning process in which the teacher adopts a secondary goal. Besides, students must take a responsibility in a cooperative group. Moreover, inquiry means learning from mistakes since the teacher shouldn't give the right answer. Inquiry also requires that students practice skills that are usually associated to "learning to learn" competency such as memory, attention, concentration, and understanding. Finally, the use of ICT tools in the process of planning, performing and analysing an experiment enables fostering digital competency.

For this reason, the learning approach promoted in Spain for implementation and validation of the TRANSIt four training modules in Spain is inquiry-based learning. After the presentation, participants engaged in ice-breaking activities. After that, the TRANSIt tutor demonstrated the TRANSIt Moodle environment for Spain called "Curs TRANSIt and it can be accessed in the following URL: http://transit.cti.gr/moodle/course/view.php?id=8.



Figure 37 Demonstrating the TRANSIt web portal environment during the training in Spain

The TRANSIt tutor explained that in order to enhance their knowledge, skills and attitudes in Facilitating student learning and assessing and reporting student learning outcomes, teachers would have to complete the following activities:

- 1. Derive learning objectives from a key competency framework or from your national curriculum
- 2. Design a learning sequence/scenario/programme for acquisition of key competencies and necessary learning materials
- 3. Run a learning sequence/scenario/programme for acquisition of key competencies using digital technologies to support learning and assessment (optional)
- 4. Review a learning sequence/scenario/programme for acquisition of key competencies

Following the evidence-based assessment method, each activity included a description, the success criteria, a space for the teacher to write comments and the possibility to attach files, i.e. the evidence of learning (see figure below).



Figure 38 Components of learning activities in the TRANSIt web portal environment for Spain

We mapped the learning activities to teacher competencies as stated in the cross-reference table from TRANSIt Training framework:

- Student learning facilitator (for completing activities 1, 2 and 3)
- Student learning assessor and reporter (for completing activities 1, 2 and 3)
- Engaged in continuing professional development (for completing activity 4)

Teachers were told that by performing the learning activities successfully they would earn a digital badge with the name of the competency. We issued the digital badges with Moodle badge manager. As shown in figure below, each badge has success criteria, thus it can be awarded automatically after completing the necessary activities.



Figure 39. "Student learning facilitator" badge from the TRANSIt web portal in Spain

# 2nd session (26th of April 2014)

One day after the first session, i.e. on Saturday, 26th of April 2014 teachers took part in the second session of the course. It lasted from 9:30 to 13:30h. The session started with a presentation and analysis of good practice examples. Afterwards, teachers engaged in a brainstorming activity in small groups. They sketched competency-based learning scenarios with simple objects provided by us such as balloons, strings and plastic bottles, among others. After that, participants started to think about their own learning sequences, scenarios or programmes fostering student competencies. They completed activity 1: "Defining learning objectives and competencies" in the TRANSIt web portal environment for Spain.



Figure 40. Brainstorming competency-based learning scenarios with simple objects

### Online training (from 27th of April to 9th of May 2014)

The TRANSIt training in Spain included an online period which lasted for two weeks. During this time, teachers completed activity 2: "Designing a learning scenario fostering transversal competencies with the necessary resources". In parallel, teachers wishing to do so could implement their learning scenarios in the classroom. Teachers who implemented their scenarios in the classroom could complete activity 3 "Run a learning sequence/scenario/programme for key competency acquisition" in the TRANSIt web portal environment. Once they submitted their learning scenarios, teachers were assigned two learning scenarios from two peers, which they had to review. The review was performed with a rubric and a text field in which they could provide comments and improvement suggestions, as shown in figure 5. To that goal, we set up a workshop module. This enabled teachers to submit files (activity 2) but also allowed the TRANSIt tutor to assign reviewers to submissions (activity 4).

The second secon	Name of the participant
Antigeneed here w	
Course 1	
latery catt a littlet the property of targety	
- Tradition - Tra	
Owner1	
This injustice file memory sciles tars	
1 Andrew 2 Tax 4 Tax of	Rubrics
Citation 7	
mentus de antenenes, las faitules las actués monsanas au acongo els cipelas Agenantes	
1. Sectorer 2. Sectorer 3. Sectorer 3. Sectorer	≻
Change -	
toda o Postettaja Cassaria	
i sodiosi i la	
Criterios 3	
operation in a second of persons and persons are propertied.	
and and	
	e

Figure 41. Rubrics for peer-assessment in the TRANSIt web portal environment for Spain

# 3rd session (10th of May 2014)

The final session of the TRANSIt course in Spain took place on Saturday, 10th of May 2014 from 9:30 to 13:30h, thus lasting for four hours. The main goal of the session was to foster an exchange and reflection about the learning scenarios designed and implemented. Besides, the TRANSIt tutor presented teacher communities and contests that may contribute to teachers' continuing professional development. We presented the TRANSIt contest and the Open Discovery Space portal, as well as National and Regional repositories of educational resources.



Figure 42. Presenting educational repositories and the TRANSIt contest to teachers

Finally, with the purpose to evaluate the course, teachers completed the skill check in the TRANSIt web portal environment, they filled in the evaluation questionnaires and they engaged in a guided discussion.



Figure 43. Teachers engaged in a guided discussion during the final face-to-face session

#### International activity: TRANSIt Summer School 2013

Below one of the international activities implemented in the course of the project is presented, thus the TRANSIt Summer School 2013. During the TRANSIt Summer School 2013, that took place in Crete, Greece; June 30 – July 5, 2013, 72 teachers had the chance to interact with their colleagues from all around Europe, exchange experiences on teaching practices and approaches, have an extensive training to competence based learning, game based approaches, social networking tools, and learn how to use learning resources and repositories. With their participation they gained knowledge, skills and experiences in designing cross-curricular competence based scenarios, searching resources, uploading them in TRANSIt community space, and assessing competences with ICT tools.



Figure 44. First Summer School's website (<u>http://transit.ea.gr/</u>)



Figure 45. Summer School's programme (http://transit.ea.gr/content/programme)

The teachers that participated from different European countries (Austria, Ireland, Netherlands, Greece, Romania, Spain, Croatia, Cyprus, Denmark, Estonia, Finland, France, Germany, Lithuania, Poland, Portugal, Slovenia, Sweden, Turkey) used and tried the consortium developed material – modules. In the Summer School there were a lot of presentations and activities related to CBL. The description of the activities/workshops that took place, as well as the presentations delivered during the Summer School are available in the Activities area of the TRANSIt summer school community 'Tralning teachers in competence based education: TRANSIt @ the Crete Summer School 2013': <u>http://portal.opendiscov-eryspace.eu/el/activities/1167</u>

Participants worked individually and/or in small teams and 22 scenarios were uploaded in the TRANSIt workspace of Octopus Authoring Tool, and are available in the Learning Scenarios area of the community: <u>http://</u> <u>portal.opendiscoveryspace.eu/el/educational-scenar-</u> <u>ios/1167</u> Scenarios are cross-curricular and competence based most of which apply to Social Sciences, Arts & a combination of other subject fields such as Mathematics & ICT.

Here follows the description of the TRANSIt closing Conference "European/national initiatives to foster competency-based teaching and learning". Apart from the keynote speeches and panel discussion 5 five parallel 2-hours workshops based on the most important project outcomes and associated activities have been implemented.

# TRANSIt 2014 Conference "European/national initiatives to foster competency-based teaching and learning"

200 Teachers of all subjects and levels, educational professionals, policy makers attended the TRANSIt Conference entitled: "European/national initiatives to foster competency-based teaching and learning Conference". hosted by TRANSIt & the Open Discovery Space European initiatives. The event took place in Ellinogermaniki Agogi in Attica Greece, on Friday October 31st 2014. Talks on a range of relevant issues, such as European/national E-Learning Policies & initiatives to foster competencybased teaching and learning, the role of e-learning in the Opening up Education agenda, the development of multilingual educational social media and what ODS can offer to a school, by selected speakers involving representatives from the Greek Ministry of Education, and the academic field were followed by presentations of innovative teaching practices with an aim to foster key competence acquisition, involving e-learning sources, as well as five parallel 2-hours workshops based on the most important project outcomes and associated activities/projects; thus being a chance for their validation. The workshop themes:

- Designing and Evaluating Educational Activities fostering Competences (using electronic resources and being member of the dedicated ODS community)
- Inquiry-Based Learning to foster students' transversal key competences and digital badges
- 3. Open Badges
- 4. Fostering the acquisition of key competences with project-based & inquiry based learning activities
- 5. Project based learning/ cross-curricular projects



Figure 46. TRANSIt Conference website (<u>http://www.transit-project.eu/conference/</u>) developed in two languages (EL, EN) – Proceedings, presentations delivered available online

The programme/agenda can be accessed at http://ea.gr/transit/TRANSIt\_Conference\_Agenda\_EN.pdf All presentations delivered are available online on the Conference website. During the panel discussion, as well as during the workshops participants had the chance to discuss and give their feedback regarding TRANSIt outcomes and rationale. Moreover, evaluation feedback has been collected from the participants through guidelines sent to them via email. Participants have been found to be satisfied by all aspects of the event, organisational as well as regarding the actual content presented.



Figure 47. TRANSIt Conference Proceedings (EN version)

6

# The TRANSIt Validation and Evaluation

This section reports on the validation and evaluation results that were derived during the two phases of TRAN-Slt implementation activities. Within this framework, evaluation has been designed with the goal to assess the activities from the scope of: a) effectivity and b) usefulness.

Underpinning the evaluation strategy for the TRANSIt project are two Key Performance Results, which have been determined to assess the success of TRANSIt implementation:

- Effectiveness: refers to the profit that stakeholders obtain from participation, i.e. the growth of teachers' competencies in terms of knowledge, skills and attitudes has been monitored
- **Usefulness:** is concerned with the satisfaction by stakeholders about the training framework, in terms of:
- Training design: including the learning activities, readings/viewings, resources.
- Assessment system: regarding the e-Portfolio and the digital badges

Learning processes: assessing the interactions among teachers and with TRANSIt tutors

These indicators have led to the use of a combination of quantitative and qualitative data collection instruments described in the following subsections.

# 6.1 Evaluation tools

# 6.1.1 Quantitative tools Questionnaire for TRANSIt participants

A questionnaire for TRANSIt participants was developed on the basis of existing evaluation tools for online teacher training available: <u>https://docs.google.com/</u><u>forms/d/1jFEsauAhZyUcYZr4OEgBfhfDdbYxZJod1K</u> <u>QPGK2B85I/viewform</u>. The questionnaire is divided in three parts. The first part is based on the "COLLES preferred and actual form" (Taylor & Maor, 2000), which was initially developed to assess postgraduate distance education for teachers. It measures the difference between what teachers prefer and their actual experience. As an example, the questionnaire for TRANSIt participants includes statements such as:

Item	Statement		1	2	3	4	5
1	I prefer that	My learning focuses on issues that interest me					
2	I found that						

Statements are grouped into six scales:

- 1. Relevance: How relevant is on-line learning to participants' professional practices?
- 2. Reflection: Does on-line learning stimulate participants' critical reflective thinking?
- Interactivity: To what extent do participants engage on-line in rich educational dialogue?
- 4. Interpretation: Do participants and tutors make good sense of each other's on-line communications?
- 5. Tutor Support: How well do tutors enable participants to participate in on-line learning?
- 6. Peer Support: Is sensitive and encouraging support provided online by fellow participants?

Each scale contains four items. In each item, participants grade what they prefer and what they have experienced by means of a five-point Likert-type response scale: Almost Never (1), Seldom (2), Sometimes (3), Often (4), Almost Always (5).

The second part of the questionnaire focuses on the eportfolio. Previous studies have shown correlations between learning motivation and e-portfolio satisfaction (Huang et al, 2011). In particular, Jun et al. (2007) has developed a survey to assess an e-portfolio-based Professional Development programme for teachers. The following sections have been selected and adapted for the purposes of TRANSIt:

- Teachers' overall perception/personal value about the e-portfolio
- Teachers' Perception about using the e-portfolio enhancing the evaluation process

Those partners who have issued digital badges for participants have assessed their effect with the third section of the questionnaire. Items have been adapted from badges surveys from Abramovich et al. (2013) and Santos et al. (2013).

#### Event satisfaction form

The organisational aspects of face-to-face events such as training workshops have been assessed with the event satisfaction form. The form has been administered to participants, by each partner, after the training activity. In some countries it has been administered printed, whereas other partners have delivered it online using the following URL: <u>https://docs.google.com/</u> forms/d/1BnNXf5zFL8P1mi7nA3J3b6COMOsoc7znK QX08ml8ScE/viewform



Figure 48: Screenshot of the TRANSIt event satisfaction form online (EN version)

# Statistics from platform

Partners examine the TRANSIt web portal environment in order to understand to what extent teachers have used the learning resources and the e-portfolio tool and in which way.

# 6.1.2 Qualitative tools

# E-portfolio assessment

It consists of an analysis of the products of teachers' learning, i.e. learning scenarios, programmes, lesson plans, etc. It provides insight about the impact of TRAN-SIt in terms of teacher competencies that have been fostered with the training activities. For the evaluation the Cross-reference table between TRANSIt learning outcomes/modules and the competency framework has been deployed.

## Interview/focus group guide for participants

Qualitative data on teachers' experience with TRANSIt has been collected with the interview guide. It assesses kind of new knowledge and skills participants have developed on using the key competency framework. Besides, it evaluated whether the training meets participants' expectations, in terms of content, structure, materials, e-portfolio and badges and social networking tools. Finally, it asks teachers for improvement suggestions and opinions about the interview itself. Following qualitative research recommendations (Baker et al, 2012), 10% of participants from each country have been interviewed or have participated in a guided discussion after the training activity.

## Interview guide for TRANSIt tutors

After implementing a training activity, TRANSIt workshop leaders and/or training tutors have been interviewed or have participated in a focus group in order to reflect on the strengths and weaknesses of the TRANSIt training framework based on their first-person experience.

## 6.2 Results

What follows is an analysis of the evaluation indicators for the project, i.e. effectiveness and usefulness of the training.

#### 6.2.1 Effectiveness on teacher competencies

The acquisition of the four teacher competencies by the TRANSIt training participants has been assessed with selected evaluation instruments. The skill check enabled teachers to self-report on their level of each competency, once at the beginning and then at the end of their involvement in the training activities. Further, the learning artefacts uploaded to the TRANSIt web portal environment such as learning scenarios, assessment plans, resources, etc. have been compared with the success criteria stated in the training framework design, following the e-portfolio assessment method. Finally, the interviews and the focus groups were useful to collect teachers' reflections on each TRANSIt teacher competency. Subsections below summarise the effectiveness of the training for each teacher competency.

#### Facilitating student learning

According to the TRANSIt training framework, the competency to facilitate student learning refers to teachers' skills to engage students in purposeful and appropriate learning experiences. Results show that on average, 50% of the teachers have increased their competency in facilitating student learning between the start and the end of their participation in the TRANSIt implementation. These findings can be complemented with an external assessment of the learning artefacts produced by teachers during the training, i.e. learning scenarios, lesson plans, educational resources, etc.

# Design a learning sequence/scenario/programme for acquisition of key competencies

The learning scenarios designed by teachers demonstrate teachers' ability to take the transversal key competencies of the students into account when planning a learning scenario. In other words, all the learning scenarios comply with the success criteria, i.e. they include at least one different criterion-based objective, clearly expressed success criteria and a well-defined context to support learners' performance/activities. As an example, one teacher defined the following learning objectives in the learning scenario that she developed in the Spanish implementation phase B:

- Formulate and answer questions using search strategies and analyse the results
- Explain data in order to express and communicate content
- Reflect on learning to become aware of learning progress
- Analyse and critically consider human interven-

tion in nature in order to behave more responsibly

The artifacts also demonstrate that participants in the TRANSIt training have made use of the local competency frameworks for students. The key competency frameworks used have been the AISTEAR programme from Ireland (http://www.earlvchildhoodireland.ie/qualityin-practice/siolta-aistear/aistear-and-curriculum/); the regional documents on the competency-based development of the curriculum in Catalonia (http://www20. gencat.cat/portal/site/ensenyament/menuitem.e79d 96e9bc498691c65d3082b0c0e1a0/?vgnextoid=bd e4ff2701e3c310VgnVCM200009b0c1e0aRCRD); and the National competency grids for teachers (http:// kokids.medien-infobox.at/materialen.html) from Austria. In particular, during the workshops implemented in Austria, teachers were very engaged to discuss diverse possibilities to design student based activities that foster diverse key competences such as "linguistic competency", "digital competency", and "learning to learn" (researches, group work, group presentations, feedback, guided interviews) by using the national competence grids.

The TRANSIt training framework also states that another success criterion for a competency-based learning scenario is that it tackles more than one student competency. In Spain, teachers designed cross-curricular learning scenarios tackling 4 or more transversal key competencies. As one teacher states during the focus group:

# "I aim to foster linguistic competency by giving feedback about spelling errors in the essays of my students, even if we are studying history".

Most of the learning scenarios evaluated include learning outcomes as well as the skills, knowledge and values required to achieve them. As an example, a primary school teacher proposed a scenario starting from an accident which took place at school. A landslide had sweeped away part of the school yard, and she planned a learning scenario to learn about this phenomenon depending on variables such as the materials in the ground, the inclination and the level of humidity. Teachers have applied one of the characteristics of competency-based learning scenarios, i.e. taking advantage of students' curiosity towards a topic. As one teacher puts it:

"Last week, a student asked me why beans were attached to the pod. I have decided that in this course, I will design a learning scenario to help my students to answer to that question".

# Prepare a learning sequence/scenario/programme for acquisition of key competencies

One of the skills included in the competency to facilitate student learning is teachers' ability to prepare a learning scenario with relevant learning resources. Review of the learning scenarios shows that the majority of teachers have included relevant learning material supporting their learning scenarios. The main material provided is data collection sheets, which have been either adapted from existing ones or made from scratch.

Furthermore, teachers have selected technologies enhancing learning and assessment. Some of the technologies present in the learning scenarios are:

- E-portfolios
- Edmodo social network for education (https:// www.edmodo.com/)
- Digital badges
- Text processor and spreadsheets
- Presentation software: Power Point, Prezi (http:// prezi.com/)
- Portal for learning history at the museum (www. habsbuger.net)
- Using films for learning (www.bildungsmedien.tv)
- RSS feeds

# Run a learning sequence/scenario/programme for acquisition of key competencies

As part of TRANSIt training, a selected number of teachers tested the learning activities planned in their own classrooms, and they gave feedback about them in a face-to-face workshop and in the online training environment. By doing so, teachers have practiced the ability to run a learning scenario for key competency acquisition. The evidence provided and teachers' own reflections demonstrate that they provided support and guidance to learners and they monitored the learning process. As an example, a teacher reports:

"I was surprised about how my students engaged in the learning activities of my learning scenario. They understood their tasks very well and they performed them in a very autonomous way. Students spent time looking for information, but this was not because the task was difficult but because they were interested in the topic. They made quick progress with the ICT tools and they used them in a very responsible way."

Assessing and reporting student learning outcomes Teachers' competency to assess and report student learning outcomes is concerned with the capability to apply authentic learning assessment techniques such as rubrics, self and peer student assessment. The skill check shows that, on average, almost 50% of the teachers have increased this competency between the beginning and the end of their participation in the TRANSIt training. In particular, most teachers have made progress in the item "Consistently use exemplary assessment and reporting strategies that are highly responsive and inclusive". This competency is fostered in TRANSIt modules 1 (design) and 3 (run) a learning scenario, sequence or programme for key competency acguisition. For this reason, we compare the success criteria for these modules against the materials produced by teachers.

# Design a learning sequence/scenario/programme for acquisition of key competencies

All learning scenarios from the Spanish teachers, except for one, use at least 2 different assessment strategies, one of them being learner centred. Peer assessment is used in the majority of learning scenarios, whereas selfassessment is deployed in more than half of the scenarios. This shows that some teachers have planned to use the two assessment strategies.

In Ireland, all teachers indicated that rubrics were an excellent way to introduce competency objectives to the class. The rubrics state the assessment criteria as rows and the levels as columns. Either the teacher, a peer or the own student decide in what level the student is of each criterion in the rubric. Teachers have designed rubrics for the majority of the learning scenarios.

In Austria, most participants agreed that it is not easy to assess the success of one activity and some teachers showed how they work with competence self-reflection/ self-assessment and reflection schemes supported by the National learning management platform LMS (http://lms.at) not only for one activity or one project but with competence schemes for one semester or one school year.

All teachers in Ireland felt that documenting their progress and that of their students would help them deliver teaching and learning experience. Similarly, the majority of the learning scenarios designed by Spanish teachers include a strategy to plan monitoring and reporting student learning. Mainly, they plan to examine products from the learning activities such as presentations, e-portfolios, documents and classroom participation. One teacher mentions the classroom diary as an instrument to monitor learning and two teachers plan taking pictures of the sessions as documentation (see figure below).

# Run a learning sequence/scenario/programme for acquisition of key competencies

During the course of the training it turned out that some participants already foster key competences in diverse manners but they are not aware of the importance of planning and structuring the activities in accordance with national competency grids and frameworks. Therefore, the assessment of their CBL activities turned out to be more or less disregarded. The presentation of national competency frameworks by the TRANSIt trainer and the individual examples of more experienced colleagues gave useful input for these participants.

#### Engaging in continuing professional development

The skill check shows that 25% of teachers self-report an increase in the competency to engage in continuing professional development after participating in TRANSIt training phase B. In one of the focus groups, a teacher stated:

# "If I had to design another competency-based

# learning scenario, I would design it in a different way because now (after TRANSIt) I feel really trained".

Another teacher states that "In order to make a real change, I should reflect on what I have learnt in this course and put it into practice. Usually, this is the greatest challenge for me".

More specifically, TRANSIt module 4 (review) was designed to increase teachers' competency in engaging in continuing professional development. In the majority of the case studies which have been evaluated, there were teachers who were more familiar than others with competency-based teaching. As an example, in Austria the experienced teachers shared their findings concerning assessment and monitoring with other colleagues, and initiated strategies for future actions and further professional development.

However, one of the main activities from the module was to review a learning scenario for key competency acquisition. As an example, Spanish teachers reviewed the learning scenarios from two other teachers and they made recommendations. The recommendations show that teachers are capable of identifying the weaknesses of competency-based learning scenarios from their peers, and they provide useful improvement suggestions. For instance, one teacher analysed a learning scenario which engaged students in data collection and analysis. The teacher who reviewed this scenario recommends using digital tools to process such data, thus "Embedding the digital and the mathematical competency in the learning scenario".

#### Establishing partnerships and collaborations

Results of the skill check show that several participants from TRANSIt implementation phase B report an increase in their capability to establish partnerships and collaborations. This competency is fostered in all TRAN-SIt modules, i.e. 1 (design), 2 (prepare), 3 (run) and 4 (review) a learning scenario, sequence or programme for acquisition of key competencies.

By examining the learning scenarios and the resources uploaded by teachers to their e-portfolios, we can see evidence that some teachers have a slight command of this competence. As an example, a Spanish teacher plans to organise a visit with the students to a museum and in this way to put the topic being studied in the scenario in a wider context. One teacher includes in her learning scenario an activity in which students write an article in the school magazine explaining the results of their project. Other teachers involve the parents in the learning activities. As one teacher puts it:

"The father of one of my students is very interested in history. This has motivated me to design, plan and run a learning scenario in which my students inquiry about the features of society in different historical periods, as well as reflecting about how we have changed from the prehistorical age until nowadays".

Further, Irish teachers would like to work in collaboration with other teachers in a project-based learning scenario to develop his collaboration skills and focus on developing his skill implementing Key Competencies. If a system like e-portfolios and peer to peer collaboration existed where teachers could share and discuss online, it would be a great benefit because everything is so new.

#### 6.2.2 Usefulness of the training

The TRANSIt training phase B has also been assessed from the scope of usefulness. This indicator evaluates to what extent the training design, the assessment system and the learning processes satisfy teachers' needs and expectations. The instruments deployed to collect data on this indicator have been the event satisfaction questionnaire, the questionnaire for TRANSIt participants and the interview/focus group guide. Results are summarised below.

#### Training design

By means of the event satisfaction form, participants expressed their opinion about different aspects from the training design on a scale from 1 [very bad] to 5 [excellent]. Results show that generally, the learning activities meet the expectations of the participants, as summarised in the graph below.



The graph shows that teachers were satisfied to a great extent with the TRANSIt training design and programme, with an average of 4.1 out of 5. The most satisfied are Spanish teachers, with an average of 4.5 out of 5, whereas the result for Austria is 3.5 out of 5. Considering the qualitative data collected in interviews, Irish teachers state that the training modules (design, plan, run and review a learning scenario) "Reflect accurately the activities included in their professional practice".

According to the graph, teachers are generally satisfied with the training materials provided. At the end of the training, most teachers showed an interest in staying involved in TRANSIt, in staying registered in the TRANSIt web portal environment "with the purpose to download the learning materials" and "to examine in more detail the learning scenarios from my colleagues and learn from them".

Another positive result is that teachers appreciate the practical knowledge gained, as shown by an average of 4.2 out of 5. The learning approaches promoted were new for most participants and they are generally regarded as interesting methodologies. Participants have learnt how to apply them in the classroom, as stated in the guided discussion. More specifically, the good practice examples used in Austria and in Spain have been well received by the teachers. Most of them signalized that they would take up the idea and adapt the examples to the specific needs of their own students.

As an example, a primary education teacher from Ireland felt that the TRANSIt training modules suited the curriculum she taught and the secondary teacher felt that in Transition Year which a year free form examination preparation between the two examinations cycles in secondary level in Ireland was particularly suited to developing key competencies with his students. The following is a quotation form the participating teacher in Ireland:

"I know what the EU Competencies are now and feel the TRANSIt course helped me see how I can implement these competencies in my lessons. I found the course offered me flexibility to experiment and further develop my own teaching skills."

#### Assessment approaches

Participants' opinion about the deployment of the eportfolio assessment method in phase B has been gathered by means of 7 items from the questionnaire for TRANSIt participants. Teachers graded each item on a scale between 1 (completely disagree) and 5 (totally agree). Table below shows the average for all countries. As an example we examine selected items from implementation in Spain:



Results show that 88% participants agree (55%) or totally agree (33%) with the statement "I would recommend to my fellow teachers that they use the e-portfolio to demonstrate fulfilment of regional or national Teacher Quality Standards". This suggests that the e-portfolio is seen as a suitable tool that should be used beyond TRANSIt.



The graph above shows the percentage of answers regarding teachers who have spoken to their colleagues about the use of the e-portfolio in TRANSIt. Results show that one third, i.e. 33% have done so.


More than half of the participants (55%) totally agree and 11% agree that it has been easy to communicate with administrators and with the TRANSIt tutor about the e-portfolio.

More details of these percentages are provided in the appendixes, which also include a comparison between participants' opinion on the e-portfolio by country.



The item obtaining the highest satisfaction refers the fact of recommending fellow teachers to use the e-portfolio to demonstrate their professional competencies, with an average of 4.4 out of 5. Consistently, on average teachers agree with the fact that they have talked about the e-portfolio with their colleagues. As one of the participants in Ireland reports:

"I completed the course and added material to the e-portfolio section in line with the course modules. I found the e-portfolio to be effective in my work and it turned out to be helpful in my planning and implementation".

The satisfaction about this assessment method goes beyond teachers' own learning, and teachers are also willing to use it with students. As one teacher puts it:

"I used the e-portfolio tool for self-reflection and professional development for myself. I am confi-

# dent in their use now and I will consider the possibility of introducing them to my students next year".

In contrast, one of the lowest scores is given to the communication with the tutors about the materials collected in the e-portfolio.

Selected TRANSIt training activities included digital badges to represent teacher competencies. In other words, teachers who achieved the learning goals of the training modules leading to enhance a given competency could earn badges with the name of the competency, i.e. "Student learning facilitator", "Assessor and reporter of student learning", "Engaged in continuing professional development" and "Partnerships and collaboration establisher". Teacher attitudes towards digital badges as part of the assessment of TRANSIt training have been gathered with questionnaire for TRANSIt participants. Results are summarised in table below.

Item	Average
I understand why I earned all my badges	4.4
I wanted to earn more badges	3.4
Badges have contributed to my engagement in the training	3.1

The lowest score is obtained in the item "Badges have contributed to my engagement in the training", thus not confirming that digital badges could motivate teachers to keep learning. However, results show that we managed to convey appropriately the meaning of digital badges and how to earn them, as shown by an average of 4.4 out of 5. On average, teachers want to earn more badges (average of 3.4 out of 5).

In contrast, the use of e-Portfolios and Open Badges that were demonstrated to Austrian teachers did not seem to bring additional value. Some teachers work with Mahara e-portfolio or Moodle with their own students in a satisfying way but they would not use it for their own training purposes. Teachers in Austria are not familiar with Open Badges and this could be the reason why they do not see additional benefit in this tool. In fact, some teachers mentioned that especially Open Badges are ahead of time and will maybe be interesting in the future.

#### Learning processes

Teachers participating in the TRANSIt training activities engaged in a series of learning processes in the online environment, as well as with interactions with the tutor and with their peers. Items 1 to 48 of the evaluation tool "Questionnaire for TRANSIt participants" assessed their satisfaction with these processes.

As shown in the appendix, results show that the implementation activities that have matched better teachers' preferences have taken place in Ireland. In other words, the difference between teachers' preferred and actual experience is zero in almost all the items in the questionnaire. The second most successful workshops in terms of learning processes have taken place in the Netherlands, where the greatest difference between teachers' preferences and their actual experience is 0.4, i.e. very close to zero. Nevertheless, the activities in Spain and Greece generally match teachers' preferences as shown by mismatch below 0.8 points. In Greece, participants experience in TRANSIt regarding the item "I explain my ideas to other teachers" is 1.4 points far from their usual preferences. This suggests that in TRANSIt, they were more prompted to share their ideas with their peers more than what they are used to. Another way to examine the data is by dimensions. Overall, the most satisfactory are reflection, interactivity and peer support. This shows that the interaction among fellow teachers was felt as useful and productive for most participants. Outcomes from the focus groups help to understand these findings. Participants in Spain agreed that face-to-face sessions were "very useful" because they could comment and ask questions about the learning scenarios of their peers and vice versa. One teacher puts it:

# "I have learnt to design scenarios fostering the competencies of my students, not so much while designing my own scenario but mostly as a result of the exchange with the other teachers involved in the course".

Interactions among participating teachers are appreciated also in Austria and in Ireland. Most teachers like to work with colleagues and regard it as a great benefit to have the opportunity to share and exchange competencybased learning and teaching experiences. As an example, an animating exchange took place among creators of the discussed project-based or/and cross-curricular learning activities in one of the face-to-face workshops in Austria. Participants seriously discussed on the guided questions and new ideas and helpful input was exchanged among teachers and teacher trainers.

In contrast, there are greater mismatches between teachers' preferences and actual experience regarding interpretation. The mismatch in some countries reaches 0.7 points. However, this is still a low number, which is a positive result. This indicator refers to teachers understanding of the messages from their peers and to the sense made by the teacher and the tutor of each other's messages during the training.

# 6.3 Quantitative Indicators (analytics data, web analysis)

In the following section Quantitative indicators about the use of the TRANSIt Community and sub-communities on ODS portal in the training and implementation activities are presented.

These data are extremely useful for reaching conclusions about the usefulness, efficiency and actual deployment of the provided facilities to participants. The tools providing analytics data developed by the portal developers has been used with the use of specific queries.

#### Indicators for TRANSIt Greek Community on ODS portal

The TRANSIt Greek Community on ODS portal has almost 700 members. Figure 49 presents the progress in registration of new users in the TRANSIt Greek Community in the period May – 10th September 2014. Although the summer break there is a constant increase in the number of members as an outcome of the implementation events organized (face to face training events, newsletters circulated). Nearly a 370% increase in registrations took place highly connected with these top-down professional development activities.



Figure 49. Progress in registration of new users in TRANSIt Greek Community (May – 10th September 2014)



Figure 50. Total visits (Greek TRANSIt Community)

The TRANSIt community is a public one, allowing access to its resources to all Open Discovery Space members. There are over 10,704 page views over the period mid-June - mid September 2014. As it is clearly evident from Figure 50, there is a considerable increase in interest in the Community, as the number of page visits demonstrates, especially during June and September, a period that the workshops webinar, as well as the circulation of newsletters took place. We can notice peak numbers (e.g. 1,200 views on 16/06). The dates of the implementation, as well as the dissemination events are marked with asterisks in these graphs.



# Social data in community

Figure 51. Social data in Greek TRANSIt Community

Figure 51 presents the use of Social Data (Comments, Bookmarks, Followed Users, Followed, Shares & Followers) the period that the main implementation events took place (mid June-mid September 2014). Again it is evident that there is a considerable online activity around the dates that the implementation events took place.



Figure 52. Social data on the resources of the Community (e.g. tags, bookmarks, comments etc.)

Figure 52 presents the impact of the events in the social tagging (Comments, Bookmarks, Followed Users, Followed, Shares & Followers) of the educational resources created and shared by members of the TRANSIt Greek Community.



# Progress of new resources & community members

Figure 53. Total resources and members (Greek Community)

In Figure 53 we can see the TRANSIt Community members' contributions on ODS portal, thus their engagement. These findings are aligned with White (2012) that most of website users (as high as 80%) who log onto a site are "lurkers" – they will take an occasional look at a website but will not participate in it; the participants, also called "posters" or "contributors" are in the minority. One of the challenges is therefore fostering such a culture to participants in sharing their educational resources and deploying the proper tools in order to engage them.

In Figure 54 we can see the impact of the Contest organised among the Greek Community in the number of views of the educational resources created and shared by trainees/participants.



## "Conversing with the Poets" views

#### Figure 54. Contest winner scenario views (contest period 01/06-09/07)

Regarding the Contest winner scenario views (Figure 54) the biggest percentage of views is during the contest period, there is a drop during the period that schools are closed (summer break), but the encouraging element is that early September with the school year opening the rate is increasing again. Secondly, the submitted learning scenarios publicly available through the community can act as demonstrators for the rest of the community members, as well as for training purposes as best cases of user generated resources/scenarios. Therefore the conduction of the contest had a dual effect in the community.

#### Indicators for TRANSIt Community and sub-communities on ODS portal

The TRANSIt Community (EN) (parent community), as well as the sub-communities demonstrate the following indicators regarding the progress of new users registration, the total number of visits, the number of educational resources and the social data in the community (tags, bookmarks, comments, followers, etc.) in the following graphs the dates of the events taking place for the support of the Greek community are again marked with an asterisk.



Figure 55. TRANSIt Community & sub-communities members





Figure 56. Total visits (TRANSIt Community & sub-communities)



# **Educational resources**

Figure 57. Number of educational resources (TRANSIt Community & sub-communities)



Figure 58. Social data in TRANSIt Community & sub-communities



Figure 59. Indicators for Greek Community (left), all communities (right) (mid June – mid September 2014)

Figure 59 presents the total indicators for the Greek and the total of the TRANSIt communities (right). As we can notice the indicators of the communities in total follow the progress of the Greek community, associated with the events taking place for its support. In any case we can notice that the activity is centred around the dates that the events took place, as well as that there is a difference between the rates of resources development vs their views/ download.

Table 3 presents the number of page views, the average session duration, the number and rate of revisits of the Greek Community, as well as TRANSIt Communities in total, based on Google analytics data. Regarding the revisit rate it is quite high (44%).

Page	Page views	Average Session Duration	Revisits	Rate
TRANSIt Greek Community	8429	111,35	3728	44%
Total (Parent and sub-communities)	9364	98,59 ~2 minutes	4099	44%

#### Table 3. Community Views (Greek Community and total results by all TRANSIt Communities)

Apart from the log files data in order to survey the impact of the training delivery and methodology had to participants and in order to record the attitude of teachers regarding the usage of eLearning resources an online questionnaire has been designed and administered.

## Skills Check/Monitoring Competence Development

When teachers register in the portal they have the opportunity to monitor competence development by completing or updating their individual competence profile, based on the self-assessment tool created by CERTH following the UNESCO ICT Competency Framework for Teachers (2011). The framework comprises of three developmental levels: technological literacy, knowledge development, and knowledge creation. As shown in table 4 each level incorporates the same six aspects.

## Table 4. UNESCO ICT Competency Framework for Teachers

	COMPETENCY	LEVEL	
	Technological	Knowledge	Knowledge
	literacy	deepening	creation
Understanding	Policy	Policy	Policy
ICT in education	awareness	understanding	innovation
Curriculum and	Basic	Knowledge	Knowledge
assessment	knowledge	application	society skills
Pedagogy	Integrate	Complex	Self-
	technology	problem solving	management
ICT	Basic tools	Complex tools	Pervasive tools
Organization and	Standard	Collaborative	Learning
administration	classroom	groups	organizations
Teacher professional learning	Digital literacy	Manage and guide	Teacher as model learner



#### Figure 60. TRANSIt Community members' competence profile (as completed during registration process)

According with the self-assessment tool teachers feel particularly confident (3rd level) in the aspect of Teacher Professional Development (75%) and the lowest scores are on ICT and organisation and administration themes.



#### Figure 61. The competence profile level of TRANSIt Greek community contributors (as completed during registration)

Figure 61 depicts the distribution in the three levels on all six aspects of the competence profile among the teachers/contributors on the community. Although, there is a significant number not having completed their profiles (self-assessed) we can see that most of the contributors feel that are competent having self-assessed their competences on Level 3. This is of importance regarding the profile of users that contribute the most in the online communities; they feel confident about their competences. The following figures depict data from the analytics tool of ODS portal regarding the progress of the competence profile of members of the TRANSIt Greek Community regarding the 6 aspects of the UNESCO ICT Competency Framework for Teachers. In all cases we can observe the positive development in teachers' competence profile in the three competency levels.



Figure 62. Understanding ICT in education- Progress of members Competence Profile in the three competency levels





117



Figure 64 Pedagogy - Progress of members Competence Profile in the three competency levels



Figure 65 – ICT - Progress of members Competence Profile in the three competency levels



Karáprion - competence



Figure 66 - Organization and administration, Progress of members Competence Profile in the three competency levels





119

🚾 Google Manter	New Applies Laborator Alex		Theat House Above the Total
Chryslebar	Audience Overview		Nov 1, 2013 - Jun 28, 2014 - 🗠
II famous	feat land a shindartoor barts		٠
an Bellen	O Al Seesona	C. All Ingenit	
	Owner		
· Independent	Second P. H. Sand press.		mark Star must make
O HetTee	· fermine		
A Anna			
Onerview + Deregrafica + Deregrafica	Territor 201 and	1 (Acces (21)	
+Cer			R Taxa Vality R Referring Value
- Tartonig-	1,811 1,401	4,237 2.34 00.02:03	
+G	Dourse Nate 10, time Sectors		
<ul> <li>Increasing</li> <li>Using Physics</li> </ul>	16.42%		-
the American	Demographics	Language	Seators 'S Sectors
	Logage	1 1.H	824 🔜 24.77%
C3 (000000)	Charter	2. 10.0	411 🔜 21,275

Figure 68 Number of views on Project website (phase a)







Figure 70. Number of views on Project Conference website (mid October – beginning of November 2014)

#### 6.4 Conclusions

Along the evaluation process of TRANSIt, more than 400 participants from different consortium countries have provided feedback on the implementation activities.

#### Effectiveness

Generally, findings from the evaluation of the TRANSIt training activities in different cultural settings enable to conclude that they were effective with regards to raising teachers' awareness in fostering student key competences. Participants of all online training activities and face-to-face supporting workshops stated that the input was useful and affects the individual stage of knowledge and teaching approach in a very positive way.

Most of the answers to the questionnaire for TRANSIt participants as well as the interviewed teachers state that participating in the project helped them to learn about teaching approaches promoting the competencies of their students and that they are willing to apply the knowledge and skills acquired in their professional practice. As shown by the learning scenarios produced by teachers participating in TRANSIt, the implementation has achieved a great success in supporting teachers to design, plan, run and review competency-based learning scenarios that demonstrate their skills in facilitating student learning and assessing and reporting student learning outcomes.

Therefore, it can be said that the TRANSIt training modules constitute an effective resource to practice and assess didactics and assessment of student competencies in a European context. In particular, it was found that the training modules supported teachers with different levels of teaching experience, background, interests and previous experience in competency-based learning. The change in teachers' skills has been found both in phases A and B of the training, although it has been more explicit in phase B.

#### Usefulness

The questionnaire for TRANSIt participants has shown that there is proximity between teachers' preferences for learning and what they actually experienced in the evaluated activities from all countries. The most successful aspects were the interactions with their peers and with the TRANSIt tutor. Indeed, participants in some countries expressed that sometimes other teachers are more able to provide them useful feedback on a lesson plan, rather than an expert or a tutor.

Participants from all countries appreciate the relevance and the added value of the TRANSIt training modules in the context of a growing interest and policy-making towards competency-based learning. In particular, teachers highlight that the learning resources and materials available in the TRANSIt web portal environment can be helpful in the process of designing and implementing cross-curricular learning scenarios that tackle student competencies in a structured way. The correlation between the positive opinion that participants have regarding the materials and the training design and programme of most workshops gives reasons to believe that the blended approach to training teachers suits their learning style. Best practice examples are the most useful learning resource according to most teachers. In some countries, participants expressed their interest in staying registered in the portal after the implementation activity finished, in order to take advantage of the learning resources available. Participants agree with the key point of an evidence-based assessment system for the training activities, especially in implementation phase B. The e-portfolio assessment method looks appropriate for most teachers, even as a general tool that any professional development activity for teachers should include, except for those from Austria. The majority did not consider digital badges as an additional benefit. However, it has been proven that teachers have very little knowledge about open badges for education.

# 7

# Future Direction/ Implementation

## 7.1 Affiliations

TRANSIt aims at developing a community of practice that will aid the sustainability of project results in the long term. During the project implementation cycle a network of affiliated end user organizations that follow closely project activities is formed. This European-wide network of interested organizations and individuals are to be regularly informed about project developments, invited to share results and to participate in project events. The schools attending the workshops that take place at project start form the core of this affiliated organizations network. The network of affiliated organizations will expand during dissemination activities. This network will operate as a community that will continue to use and enhance project outcomes after project completion thus serving project sustainability.

The partner affiliation program is developed in a way in order to ensure maxima impact, targeting various communities and organizations for the creation of a European-wide network. The affiliation program of TRAN-Slt is not just a scientific awareness of the innovative results derived within the project, but has a broader target group of interested organisations/individuals, such as professionals, organizations providing educational services and public bodies related to education. The methodology adopted for the design of the affiliation program follows the concept that is described in the following Figure. For each potential target group, a specialized set of awareness programs is listed. The design of the affiliation program takes as input its objectives, the target groups and the potential awareness programs for the target groups.

Along with extended outcome lifetime, consortium participants especially from Austria and Greece will continue to support the TRANSIt community as the training framework is in line with their mission and activities. All established social communities during the project implementation cycle will be maintained, providing infrastructure for information exchange and sharing regarding competence based learning and e-assessment.

#### 7.2 Networking and clustering activities

7.2.1 Connection with other projects, repositories, networks

# **Open Discovery Space:** A socially-powered and multilingual open learning infrastructure to boost the adoption of eLearning resources

ODS addresses various challenges that face the eLearning environment in the European context. The interface has been designed with students, teachers, parents and policy makers in mind. ODS will fulfill three principal objectives. Firstly, it will empower stakeholders through a single, integrated access point for eLearning resources from dispersed educational repositories. Secondly,



KEYCONET

KCYS

Policy for

Educator

Evidence in

Portfolios

eTwinning

it engages stakeholders in the production of meaningful educational activities by using a socialnetwork style multilingual portal, offering eLearning resources as well as services for the production of educational activities. Thirdly, it will assess the impact of the new educational activities, which could serve as a prototype to be adopted by stakeholders in school education.

## KeyCoNet

KeyCoNet is a European Policy Network on the Implementation of Key Competence Development (KCD) in School Education. TRANSIt is one of KeyCoNet case studies.

# KEYS "Key Methodology to Successful Competence Based Learning"

The KEYS project aims at the valorisation and dissemination of outcomes of successful projects and initiatives addressing acquisition of key competences and therefore this linkage is of outmost importance. TRANSIt was represented in the KEYS Conference 2014.

#### PEEP

PEEP (Policy for Educator Evidence in Portfolios) has as aim he development of a policy for ePortfolio career-tracking for educators

School Networks eTwinning

eTwinning is a Network of European partner schools. It offers online tools to find each other, meet virtually, exchange ideas and practice examples, team up in Groups, learn together in Learning Events and engage in online-based projects. TRANSIt was represented at the first Greek eTwinning Conference and a Webinar was held in the context of the eTwinning Seminar 2014 presenting the TRANSIt approach (http:// vimeo.com/95351402)

# Virtuelle Schule (VIS:AT)

The subject oriented portals makes digital learning materials, learning scenarios by subject freely available to the Austrian teachers community. It aims to encourage transdisciplinarity teaching and is a networking tool for teachers.

## **Networks of Experts**

**EUROPORTFOLIO** (European Network of ePortfolio Experts & Practitioners)

Europortfolio is a not-for profit association being developed with the support of European Commission as a central part of EPNET project, dedicated to exploring how ePortfolios and ePortfolio related technologies and practices can help empower individuals, organisations and wider society. Europortfolio provides a network for those doing ePortfolio and related work across Europe; to build the use of e-portfolios across communities, and to provide opportunities for future partnership working.





4 Schritte des TRANSIE-Konzepts zur Durchführung von kompetenzbasierten Lernaktivitäten

nekstelst	Lerrapie von Solizielloopetre Palenos debenn     Lerrapie von Solizielloopetre Falenos debenn     Lerrapiero / Sensint/ Porspenn för des Frunch von Schützalkonspetensen antworfen     Leotektung und bericht/Auswertung planen     Seconditung und bericht/Auswertung planen
reaktiveti ebererter	Lemangeburg für den finverb von Schlassikompatierzen vorbieretten     Lemmaterial zum Ernerb von Schlassikompatierzen identifizieren / auswihlen /adapteren /     entwicken     *redrickgien zum Leman und Bezitellen körstitzteren / auswihlen/ adapteren /adsetzen
malkti/t	-Eine Lamoequerz/ ein Stemano/ ein Programm zum Einverb von Schlüsselkompetersen durchlüben     -Digitsin Technologien zum Lamon, und Beurteilem ensistzen     -Lemen biobachter und beurteilen
Nakilariti	Nachbeistieltung einer Lennsequenz/ eines Szeturios/ eines Programms zum Erwert von Schlanelkoopetiscen • Edition, Sudiation • Feditation

Figure 71. Synergies with National Educational Policies (the case of Austria)

## 7.3 Selected Dissemination Channels



Figure 72 TRANSIt Leaflet - English version



Figure 73. TRANSIt Poster (http://www.transit-project.eu/sites/default/files/TRANSIT\_POSTER.pdf)





Figure 74. TRANSIt promotion on social media

## 7.4 Future steps

Based on the sets of competencies identified by UNESCO ICT Competence Framework (3) levels of teachers' competence are defined. By organising these competencies into three hierarchical levels, a coarse categorization is made that can help decide which e-learning resources, pedagogies, and assessment methods are (most) appropriate for, and should therefore be made available to, different groups of teachers. The figure below is presenting this progress through the years and the Comenius projects that Ellinogermaniki Agogi has been coordinating.



METASCHOOL training framework (2009-2011) focused on teachers skills ICT and teaching with ICT, LD-skills training framework (2011-2012) focused on ICT for pedagogical innovation TRANSIt on fostering students competences (2012 – 2014) and ODS training framework (2012-2014) will include the design and implementation of training programmes of METASCHOOL, LD-skills and TRANSIt on the methodological approaches on how teachers can integrate eLearning resources available on the web with core academic content in lesson plans and increase student participation in classroom activities through the use of ICT for pedagogical transformation. It should be noted here that all the TRANSIt products are available in the project's web site and web portal and will be available for at least five years after the end of the project funding period with responsibility of the project coordinator and with the contribution of the whole consortium. Apart from this TRANSIt modules will be made available from the ODS Teacher Training Academies, in addition to the thematic communities that have been developed in the context of the project, where teachers can exchange their resources with an aim to foster students competences as well as the experience from classroom implementations.



# References

- Abramovich, S.; Schunn, C.; Higashi, R. M. (2013) Are badges useful in education?: it depends upon the type of badge and expertise of learner. Education Tech Research Dev DOI 10.1007/s11423-013-9289-2
- Baker, S. E. & Edwards, R. (Eds.) (2012). Howmany qualitative interviews is enough. Retrieved from http://eprints.ncrm.ac.uk/2273/4/how\_many\_interviews.pdf
- Berg, B. L. (2001). Qualitative Research Methods for the Social Sciences. Boston: Allyn and Bacon.
- Biemans, H., Nieuwenhuis, L., Poell, R., Mulder, M. & Wesselink, R.(2004) Competence-based VET in the Netherlands: background and pitfalls, Journal for vocational education and training, 56, 4, 523-538
- Campbell, D. M., Melenyzer, B. J., Nettles, D. H. & Wyman, R. M. (2000) Portfolio and performance assessment in Teacher Education. Boston: Allyn and Bacon
- Cluster Key Competences-Curriculum Reform Peer Learning Activity "Fostering Cross-curricular Key Competences for Creativity and Innovation." Vienna 10-12 November 2008, Local Cultural Policies Handbook: http://www.kreativinnovativ09.at/ fileadmin/EuDocs/Vienna%20PLA%20final%20 version%20Jan%2026th.pdf
- Council conclusions of 12 May 2009 on a strategic framework for European cooperation in education and training ('ET 2020'), (2009/C119/02): http:// eurlex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do?uri=0

J:C:2009:119:0002:0010:EN:PDF

- COM/2010/0682 final. Communication from the Commission to the European Parliament, the Council, the European Economic and Social Committee and the Committee of the Regions. An Agenda for new skills and jobs: A European contribution towards full employment: http://ec.europa.eu/social/ BlobServlet?docld=6328&langld=en
- Department of Education and Training of West Australia. (2004). "Competency Framework for Teachers". Retrieved from http://www.det.wa.edu. au/policies/detcms/cms-service/download/ asset/?asset\_id=5245770
- European Commission (2006). Key competences for Lifelong Learning European Reference Framework.
- European Foundation for Quality and Management (2013). EFQM Excellence model. Excellent Organisations achieve and sustain outstanding levels of performance that meet or exceed the expectations of all their stakeholders. Brussels: EFQM Publications
- Gail, J., M and Brader-Araje L. (2002). The impact of constructivism on education: Language, discourse, and meaning. American Communication Journal 5.3 (2002): 1-10.
- Gonczi, A., Hager, P., and Oliver, L. (1990). Establishing competency-based standards in the professions. Research Paper No. 1, National Office of Overseas Skills Recognition, DEET. Canberra: Australian Government Publishing Service.

- Huang, J.; Yang, S.; & Chang, M. (2011). The effect of ePortfolio satisfaction on students' learning motivation and Internet self-efficacy. Journal of Educational Technology Development and Exchange, 4(1), 103-118.
- Jun, M. K., Anthony, R., Achrazoglou, J., & Coghill-Behrends, W. (2007). ePortfolio for assessment and professional development of newly hired teachers. TechTrends, 51(4), 45-50.
- Key competences for Lifelong Learning European Reference Framework: http://ec.europa.eu/dgs/ education\_culture/publ/pdf/ll-learning/keycomp\_ en.pdf
- Recommendation of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 December 2006 on key competences for lifelong learning (2006/962/EC): http://eurlex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do ?uri=OJ:L:2006:394:0010:0018:EN:PDF
- ODS Deliverable D4.3 (2013) Open Discovery Space Scenarios
- Recommendation of the European Parliament and of the Council of 18 December 2006 on key competences for lifelong learning (2006/962/EC): http://eurlex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do ?uri=0J:L:2006:394:0010:0018:EN:PDF
- Santos, C.; Almeida, S.; Pedro, L.; Aresta, M. & Koch-Grunberg, T. (2013) Students' perspectives on badges in educational social media platforms. IEEE 13th International Conference on Advanced Learning Technologies
- Taylor, P. & Maor, D. (2000). Assessing the efficacy of online teaching with the Constructivist On-Line Learning Environment Survey. In A. Herrmann and M.M. Kulski (Eds), Flexible Futures in Tertiary Teaching. Proceedings of the 9th Annual Teaching Learning Forum, 2-4 February 2000. Perth: Curtin University of Technology. Retrieved from http://researchrepository.murdoch.edu.au/8750/1/TL\_Forum\_2000\_Taylor\_and\_Maor\_-\_the\_Constructivist\_On-Line\_Learning\_Environment\_Survey.pdf
- The Mozilla Foundation, Peer 2 Peer University, the MacArthur Foundation (2012). Open Badges for Lifelong Learning: Exploring an open badge ecosys-

tem to support skill development and lifelong learning for real results such as jobs and advancement. Retrieved from https://wiki.mozilla.org/images/5/59/OpenBadges-Working-Paper\_012312. pdf. Date accessed: 15 Jul. 2014.

- UNESCO. (2011). ICT Competency Framework for Teachers. Retrieved from http://unesdoc.unesco. org/images/0021/002134/213475e.pdf
- Western Australia Department of Education, (2009). Competence Framework for Teachers.



# Appendix A: Use Cases/ User generated CBL resources

All training materials used during the pilots, the five days courses (TRANSIt summer and winter schools), as well as the user-generated content, that can serve as use cases for interested education stakeholders around the theme of competence based learning can be accessed through the portal (http://transit.cti.gr/moodle/), as well as the TRANSIt English community (http://portal.opendiscoveryspace.eu/community/training-teachers-competence-based-educationtransit-73929) and multilingual sub-communities on ODS Portal.

The following table lists indicative user generated learning scenarios covering a variety of subject areas and Transversal Key Competences, created by participants in TRANSIt training activities.

Title	Teacher	Curriculum	Transversal	Students
	Competency	Area(s)	Competences	Age
Children's Rights	<ul> <li>Facilitating Student Learning</li> <li>Assessing and Reporting Student Learning Outcomes</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Social Sciences</li> <li>ICT</li> <li>Art and design</li> <li>Language and Literature</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Communicati on in the mother tongue</li> <li>Digital competence</li> <li>Learning to learn</li> <li>Social and civic competences</li> <li>Sense of initiative and entrepreneurs hip</li> <li>Cultural awareness and expression</li> </ul>	8-12 years old

# Appendix A: Use Cases/ User generated CBL resources

Dealing with Diversity	Facilitating Student Learning Assessing and Reporting Student Learning Outcomes	<ul> <li>Social Studies</li> <li>ICT</li> <li>Literacy</li> <li>Religious Studies</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Social and civic competences</li> <li>Cultural awareness and expression</li> </ul>	Various Ages
Electric guitar "A musical instrument made by students"	<ul> <li>Facilitating Student Learning</li> <li>Assessing and Reporting Student Learning Outcomes</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Science</li> <li>Music (as part of Arts)</li> <li>Mathematics</li> <li>ICT</li> <li>History</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Mathematical competence and basic competences in science</li> <li>and</li> </ul>	16 – 18 years old
			technology Digital competence Learning to learn Cultural awareness and expression	
Making Bridges	<ul> <li>Facilitating Student Learning</li> <li>Assessing and Reporting Student Learning Outcomes</li> </ul>	Science     ICT	<ul> <li>Mathematical competence and basic competences in science</li> <li>and technology</li> <li>Digital competence</li> <li>Learning to learn</li> <li>Sense of initiative and entrepreneurs hip</li> </ul>	15 years old
3d printing of a minoic vase	<ul> <li>Facilitating Student Learning</li> <li>Assessing and Reporting Student Learning Outcomes</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>History, Maths, ICT, Design and Technology</li> <li>Linkage with the National Greek curriculum is provided</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Mathematical competence and basic competences in science and technology;</li> <li>Digital competence;</li> <li>Learning to learn;</li> <li>Sense of initiative and entrepreneurs hip;</li> <li>Cultural awareness and expression</li> </ul>	Can be adapted for use in all grades



Figure 75. Workspace "Training teachers in competence based education" on Octopus Tool and the available CBL Pathways



Figure 76 Competence based learning scenario "Making Bridges" uploaded on Octopus Authoring/Learning Design Tool



Figure 77 Example of cross-curricular CBL scenario "3d printing of a minoic vase" - Connection with the National Curriculum, eResources used (also from the National Aggregator/Harvester "Photodentro"), http://portal.opendiscoveryspace.eu/el/scenarios-view/FWq\$2F\$\$2F\$g3aA1Ep5NAYqEPUfw\$3D\$\$3D\$

9



# Appendix B: Evaluation tools deployed

#### **Event satisfaction form**

#### "Event title" (Place, dd/mm/yyyy, hh:mm)

#### Introduction

Thank you for taking part in this survey that will express your opinion about the event you have participated in. The questionnaire has a total number of 10 questions.

Please return the form upon your departure.

#### Short overview

TRANSIt (TRANSversal key competences for Lifelong Learning: TraIning teachers in competence-based education) is a European project which aims to enhancing teachers' awareness, knowledge and skills on competence-based education creating learning contexts where teachers of Comenius programmes can practice competence-based didactics and assessment by using digital tools.

#### **Previous experience**

Profession

Years of experience

#### Considerations on the event

Please rate the following questions, using the scale from 1 [very bad] to 5 [excellent]:

Question	Answer				
<ol> <li>What is your opinion about the duration of the event?</li> </ol>	12345				
2. How do you rate the overall organization?					
3. How do you rate the design and program of the event?					
4. How do you rate the venue?					
5. How do you rate the quality of the distributed materials?					
6. How do you rate the practical knowledge you gained from this					
workshop?					
7. Please rate the trainer feedback on your questions.					
8. Was the trainer effective in teaching?					
9. How did the event meet your expectations?	12345				
10. What is your overall assessment of the event?	12345				

Please provide any comments on the points above and/or suggestions for the event:

## **TRANSIt** questionnaire

#### **COLLES Preferred and Actual survey**

The purpose of this questionnaire is to help us understand how well the online delivery of this module enabled you to learn.

Each one of the 24 statements below asks about (a) your *preferred* (or ideal) experience, and (b) your *actual* experience in this unit. Please choose the answer that best represents your opinion, i.e. Almost Never (1), Seldom (2), Sometimes (3), Often (4), Almost Always (5).

There are no 'right' or 'wrong' answers; we are interested only in your opinion. Please be assured that your responses will be treated with a high degree of confidentiality, and will not affect your assessment.

Your carefully considered responses will help us improve the way this unit is presented online in the future.

Thank you very much for your kind assistance.

Relevance

I	n this module		1	2	3	4	5
1	I prefer	my learning focuses on issues that interest me					
	I found that						
2	I prefer	what I learn is important for my professional practice					
	I found that						
3	I prefer	I learn how to improve my professional practice					
	I found that						
4	I prefer	what I learn connects well with my professional					
	I found that	practice					
Re	flection						_

I	n this module		1	2	3	4	5
1	I prefer	I think critically about how I learn					
	I found that						
2	I prefer	I think critically about my own ideas					
	I found that						
3	I prefer	I think critically about other students' ideas					
	I found that						
4	I prefer	I think critically about ideas in the readings					
	I found that						
Int	eraction						

_	_		

I	n this module		1	2	3	4	5
1	I prefer	I make good sense of other students' messages					
	I found that						
2	I prefer	other students make good sense of my messages.					
	I found that						
3	I prefer	I make good sense of the tutor's messages					
	I found that						
4	I prefer	the tutor makes good sense of my messages					
	I found that						
Tu	tor support						

the tutor stimulates my thinking.					
1					
the tutor encourages me to participate.					
the tutor models good discourse.					
the tutor models critical self-reflection					
	_ the tutor encourages me to participate. _ the tutor models good discourse. _ the tutor models critical self-reflection	the tutor encourages me to participate. the tutor models good discourse. the tutor models critical self-reflection	the tutor encourages me to participate. the tutor models good discourse. the tutor models critical self-reflection	the tutor encourages me to participate.	the tutor encourages me to participate.

I —							
I	n this module		1	2	3	4	5
1	I prefer	other students encourage my participation.					
	I found that						
2	I prefer	other students praise my contribution					
	I found that						
3	I prefer	other students value my contribution					
	I found that						
4	I prefer	other students empathise with my struggle to learn.					
	I found that						
ePortfolio assessment							
Te	achers' overall po	erception/personal value about ePortfolio					

Item	1	2	3	4	5
1 I would recommend to my fellow teachers that they use the ePortfolio to					
demonstrate fulfillment of regional or national Teacher Quality Standards					
2 I have spoken to colleagues about my use of the ePortfolio					
Teachers' Perception about using ePortfolio enhancing the evaluation process					
Item	1	2	3	4	5
1 My administrators have been supportive and helpful in my use of the					
ePortfolio					
2 I have communicated with the administrator(s) evaluating my teaching					
performance about the materials collected in my ePortfolio					
3 I have found it easy to communicate with administrators and mentors about					
the materials I have collected in my ePortfolio					
4 I have made decisions about and sometimes made changes in the materials I					
have collected in my ePortfolio based on conversations with administrators					
and mentors.					
5 I have placed materials in my ePortfolio under new or different standards					
based on conversations with administrators or mentors.					
Badges					_
Item	1	2	3	4	5
1 I understand why I earned all my badges					
2 I wanted to earn more badges					
3 I think that badges have contributed to feeling more engaged with my					
learning					
Do you have any other comments?					
How long has it taken you to fill in this questionnaire?					
- Less than 5 minutes					
- 5-10 minutes					
- More than 10 minutes					
User ID:					
Thank you for your collaboration!					

#### Questions used for interviews and focus group discussions

#### Awareness of transversal key competences

 What kind of new knowledge regarding how transversal key competences affect your current practices have you developed during the training?

#### Professional skills and knowledge on didactics of transversal key competences

- 2. What kind of new knowledge and skills on didactics of transversal key competences have you developed during the training?
- 3. What are your feelings after the training about using the key competences framework for planning learning activities?
- 4. Has the training enhanced your skills on planning, structuring and sequencing a cross-curricular programme?

#### Professional skills and knowledge in e-assessment of transversal key competences

- 5. What kind of new knowledge and skills on strategies for assessing transversal key competences have you developed during the training?
- 6. What are your feelings after the training about assessing transversal key competence achievement of your students through ICT tools?

#### Project impact

- Will you use the tools/methods/learning from this training in your future courses or other activities?
- 8. Do you have any other comments or remarks?

## Interview guide for participants

Interview
Date and time
Place, country
Interviewer
Name
Interviewed
ID:
Age
Profession
Gender
<ul> <li>What kind of new knowledge and skills have you developed in this training on</li> <li>Using the key competences framework for designing learning activities</li> <li>Preparing educational activities aimed at students' acquisition of competences</li> <li>Running educational activities aimed at students' acquisition of competences</li> <li>Reviewing educational activities aimed at students' acquisition of competences</li> </ul>
<i>Note to interviewer:</i> Choose the questions depending on the module that the teacher has participated in.
<ul> <li>Has the training met your expectations, in terms of</li> <li>Content: learning activities</li> <li>Structure</li> <li>Materials</li> <li>ePortfolio and badges</li> <li>Social networking tools</li> </ul>
If not, do you have any suggestions for improvement?
Other comments or remarks

## Online validation questionnaire (use of digital resources)

This questionnaire has been designed specifically for the implementation activities in Greece in order to measure the impact of participation in TRANSIt training activities participants' attitude about the use of eLearning resources, potential future exploitation of the community sharing resources functionalities, comments about the specific training activity and preference about future ones). It's available online at <a href="https://docs.google.com/forms/d/12muL10">https://docs.google.com/forms/d/12muL10</a> QnH95fXdXSqED5DN2N1FaRzBk8KPay-hBJNUE/viewform

Future actions					
To what degree do you think you would need more support on the themes of the seminar?	Not at all				Very much
To what degree would you be willing to participate in a seminar with much more hours (12-18) that would be implemented in the near future?	Not at all				Very much
How many hours do you think would be necessary for such a course?	6 hours	10	15	21	24 hours
Would you prefer such a course to be:	Face to face	distance only	blended (25% face to face and 75% distance)		
In case it was a MOOC like course how would you like to be evaluated	no evaluat ion	evaluation (with project assignme nt)	evaluation through face to face examinati on		
Use of digital content/libraries					
How often do you use digital content?	never				very often
In which degree do you design your own learning scenarios?	never				very often
In what degree do you intend to visit the ODS portal & the TRANSIt community (http://portal.opendiscoveryspace.eu/el/educ ational-scenarios/184334) in order to access leaning resources?	never				very often
in order to adapt one of the scenarios (e.g. for use in a different grade than the one that	never				very often
was initially designed for)?					
in order to upload your own resources/scenario?	never				very often
in order to create your own digital community?	never				very often

in order to search for resources based on your needs?	never			very often
in order to contact with colleagues?	never			very often
in order to collaborate with colleagues so as to jointly design resources?	never			very often
in order to exchange attitudes/views regarding the outcomes of CBL activities on your students?	never			very often
Would you recommend the use of digital libraries (like ODS) to others, e.g. teachers, administrators?	Yes	No		

# Results from the online validation questionnaire



Future actions: To what degree do you think you would need more support on the themes of the seminar?



To what degree would you be willing to participate in a seminar with much more hours (12-18) that would be implemented in the near future?



How many hours do you think would be necessary for such a seminar/course?

143


## Would you prefer such a course to be...



In case it was an online course (MOOC like) would you like to be evaluated...



## How often do you use digital content?



In which degree do you design your own learning scenarios?



In what degree do you intend to visit the ODS portal & the TRANSIt community (http://portal.opendiscoveryspace. eu/el/educational-scenarios/184334)... in order to access leaning resources?



In what degree do you intend to visit the ODS portal & the TRANSIt community...in order to adapt one of the scenarios (e.g. for use in a different grade than the one that was initially designed for)?



In what degree do you intend to visit the ODS portal & the TRANSIt community...in order to upload your own resources/scenario?



In what degree do you intend to visit the ODS portal & the TRANSIt community...in order to create your own digital community?



In what degree do you intend to visit the ODS portal & the TRANSIt community...in order to search for resources based on your needs?



In what degree do you intend to visit the ODS portal & the TRANSIt community... in order to contact with colleagues?



In what degree do you intend to visit the ODS portal & the TRANSIt community...in order to collaborate with colleagues so as to jointly design resources?



In what degree do you intend to visit the ODS portal & the TRANSIt community...in order to exchange attitudes/ views regarding the outcomes of CBL activities on your students?



Would you recommend the use of digital libraries (like ODS) to colleagues?





ISBN Number: 978-960-473-596-9



The TRANSIt project is co-financed by the European Commission within the framework of the Lifelong Learning Programme